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NOTICE OF THE SEVENTEENTH (17TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Seventeenth (17th) Annual General Meeting of the Members of 

GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited will be held on Friday, September 27, 

2024 at 12:00 Noon (IST) at a Shorter Notice through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 

Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following business: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

1) To consider and adopt the standalone audited financial statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2024 together with the reports of the Board of 

Directors and Statutory Auditors thereon. 
 

2) To appoint a Director in place of Mr. GBS Raju (DIN: 00061686), who retires by rotation, 

being eligible & seeks re-appointment. 
 

3) To appoint a Director in place of Mr. SGK Kishore (DIN: 02916539), who retires by 

rotation, being eligible & seeks re-appointment 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

4) To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 

for the time being in force), the remuneration of Rs.2,50,000/- (Rupees Two Lakh Fifty 

Thousands Only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses, 

payable to M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration 

Number: 000042), Cost Auditors, for conducting the audit of cost records of the 

Company for the financial year 2024-25, be and is hereby ratified.” 
 

5) Appointment of Mr. Sudhakar Rao (DIN: 01976832) as a Director: 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150, 152, 160 and any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) Mr. 
Sudhakar Rao (DIN: 01976832), who was initially appointed as an additional (Independent) 
Director of the Company with effect from November 22, 2023 and holds office of the Director 
up to the date of 17th Annual General Meeting (AGM) pursuant to section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of the 
independent directorship as provided under section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for 
appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 
member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the 
office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company 
to hold the office for a maximum term of Five (5) years with effect from November 22,2023 
or till the conclusion of the 21st  Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the 
year 2028, whichever is earlier, subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing 
AGM and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company 
Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to file necessary 
returns/forms to the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds and things that 
may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the 
aforesaid resolution.” 
 

6) Appointment of Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi (DIN: 01509031) as a Director: 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150, 152, 160 and any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) Dr. 
Ravindra Kumar Tyagi (DIN: 01509031), who was initially appointed as an additional 
(Independent) Director of the Company with effect from November 22, 2023 and holds office 
of the Director up to the date of 17th Annual General Meeting (AGM) pursuant to section 161 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of 
the independent directorship as provided under section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible 
for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from 
a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the 
office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company 
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to hold the office for a maximum term of Five (5) years with effect from November 22,2023 
or till the conclusion of the 21st  Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the 
year 2028, whichever is earlier, subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing 
AGM and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company 
Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to file necessary 
returns/forms to the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds and things that 
may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the 
aforesaid resolution.” 
 
 

                              
By Order of the Board 

For GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited 
        
 
                            Sd/- 
    Rakhal Panigrahi 
                                                                                                                                Company Secretary 
Date: September 05, 2024 
Place: Hyderabad      
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Notes: 

1. In view of the prevailing Covid-19 pandemic and maintain the social distancing norms, 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular dated May 05, 
2020 read with General Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, April 21, 2020, 
June 15, 2020, September 28, 2020, December 31, 2020, May 05, 2022, December 28, 
2022 and the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Fourth Amendment Rules, 
2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars and Amended Rules”) permitted the 
holding of the General Meetings through Video Conferencing (“VC”) facility or Other 
Audio Visual Means (”OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members at a 
common venue, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). 
Further, MCA vide its General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, allowed 
the companies whose AGMs are due to be held in year 2024, to conduct their AGMs 
through video conferencing (VC) or other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), on or before 
September 30, 2024. Pursuant the aforesaid MCA Circulars, the 17th Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM” or “the Meeting”) of GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering 
Limited (“GACAEL” or “the Company”) is scheduled to be held on Friday, September 27, 
2024, at 12 Noon (IST) through video conferencing (VC) / OAVM.   

 
2. As per provisions of the Act and aforesaid MCA Circulars and Amended Rules, the 

Company is not required to provide the facility of e-voting. The MCA Circulars prescribe 
that in case the Company has in its records, the email address of the members of at least 
half of the total numbers, who represent not less than seventy-five percent of the paid-
up share capital of the Company and gives a right to vote in the meeting, the AGM of 
such Company may be conducted through VC facility or OAVM only. The Company has 
in its records, the email addresses of all the Members of the Company representing 
hundred percent of the total paid-up share capital of the Company and gives right to 
the vote at the meeting.  However, the Company is required to comply with the 
framework prescribed by the MCA vide its Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 
2020, January 13, 2021 and May 05, 2022 for conducting the AGMs through VC facility 
or OVAM and issue of AGM Notice and subject to the fulfillment of the requirements 
which are covered hereunder in this Notice. 

 
In terms with the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the deemed venue for the 17th AGM is the 
address of the Registered Office of the Company i.e. at Plot No.1, GMR Hyderabad 
Aviation SEZ Limited, Rajiv Gandhi International Airport, Shamshabad, Hyderabad – 
500 108, Telangana. 
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3. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 

and vote on a poll instead of himself or herself and such proxy need not be a member 
of the Company. However, in view of the specific circumstances during which this AGM 
is being held, pursuant to MCA Circulars on holding of AGM through VC / OAVM, the 
requirement of physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, 
the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members under Section 105 of the Act will 
not be available for the 17th AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and route 
map are not annexed to this Notice. 

 
Participation of Members through VC /OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose of 
quorum for the AGM as per Section 103 of the Act. 
  

4. Notice convening the 17th AGM along with the 17th Annual Report 2023-24 (including 
financial statements, auditors report, board’s report and relevant documents) is being 
sent only through electronic mode i.e. by email to all the Members and others entitled 
to their e-mail addresses registered with the Company.  
 

5. The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act in respect of Special 
Business is annexed hereto.   

 
6. As per the provisions of clause 3.A.II. of the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 

2020, issued by the MCA, the matters of Special Business as appearing at Item Nos. 4, 5 
and 6 of the accompanying Notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and 
hence, form part of this Notice. 

 
7. All the documents referred to in the 17th AGM Notice in respect of special business, 

Annual Report as well as Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies and all the 
Statutory Registers, which are to be kept open for inspection by the Members of the 
Company, will be available for inspection through electronic mode during 11.00 a.m. 
and 5.00 p.m. on all working days till the date of the 17th AGM.  In this regard, Members 
are requested to send an email from their registered email id to 
rakhal.panigrahi@gmrgroup.in . Further, the Members seeking any information with 
regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write to 
rakhal.panigrahi@gmrgroup.in, on or before September 23, 2024 and response for the 
same will be sent by the Company accordingly.  

 
8. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
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9. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative to attend the 

Meeting are requested to send to the Company, the authorisation Letter along with a 
certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to attend and 
vote thereat, on their behalf at the AGM.  The scanned copy of Authorization Letter 
along with Board Resolution shall be sent by email from their registered email id to 
rakhal.panigrahi@gmrgroup.in  

 
10. The instructions or details of the AGM i.e. access link to the VC or OAVM, login id, 

passwords, helpline numbers, e-mail id of a designated person who shall provide 
assistance for easy access to the AGM, shall be shared separately. 

 
11. Facility for joining the AGM will be kept open 15 minutes before the scheduled time of 

the AGM and shall not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled time 
of the AGM.  

 
12. The Chairman of the Board will preside as the Chairman of AGM. In case, the Chairman 

is not present due to other occupation, the Directors present will elect one among 
themselves to be the Chairman of the AGM. If no director is willing to act as Chairman 
or if no director is present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for holding the 
AGM, the members present shall choose one of their members to be the Chairman of 
AGM. 

 
13. The Chairman of the AGM may conduct a vote on the Resolutions by show of hands, 

unless a demand for poll is made by a member in accordance with the provisions of 
section 109 of the Act. Where a poll on any item is required, the members shall cast 
their votes on the resolutions only by sending e-mails to the email ID 
[Rakhal.panigrahi@gmrgroup.in] through their email addresses which are registered 
with the Company.  

 
14. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order 

of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the 
AGM. 

 
15. Apart from the ordinary business, the following agenda items under special business 

are being placed at 17th AGM for consideration and approval of the Members, which 
are unavoidable in the opinion of the Board: 
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1 Ratification of remuneration of 

the Cost Auditors for the 
financial year 2024-25. 

As per agreed scope of cost audit for the 
financial year 2024-25, the cost auditor has 
to provide limited review report on cost audit 
on quarterly basis for management review.  
The cost audit remuneration fixed by the 
Board is subject to ratification by the 
Members of the Company. Hence, placing this 
agenda in this AGM. 

2 Appointment of Mr. Sudhakar 
Rao as Director of the Company 

Mr. Sudhakar Rao was appointed as an 
Additional Director w.e.f. November 22,2023 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 
161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. 
Sudhakar Rao holds office up to the date of 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In this 
regard the Company has received request in 
writing from a member of the company 
proposing Mr. Sudhakar Rao for candidature 
for appointment as Director of the Company 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 
160 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

3 Appointment of Dr. Ravindra 
Kumar Tyagi as Director of the 
Company 

Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi was appointed as 
an Additional Director w.e.f. November 
22,2023 in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Dr. 
Ravindra Kumar Tyagi holds office up to the 
date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
In this regard the Company has received 
request in writing from a member of the 
company proposing Dr. Ravindra Kumar 
Tyagi for candidature for appointment as 
Director of the Company in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 160 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 
16. The recorded transcript of the VC / OAVM will be maintained in safe custody by the 

Company.  
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17. Meeting through VC or OAVM facility is allowed two-way teleconferencing for ease of 

participation of the members.             
 

18. The Auditor or his / her authorized representative, who is qualified to be an auditor 
would attend such meeting through VC or OVAM facility.  

 
19. The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Meeting, i.e. on Friday, 

September 27, 2024, subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favor of the 
Resolutions.          
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE OF THE 17TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
Item No.4 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on July 17, 2024, has re-appointed 
M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co, Cost Auditors (Firm Registration Number: 000042), as Cost 
Auditors of the Company, in terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and has fixed a 
sum of Rs.2,50,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) as remuneration payable to 
the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2024-25.  
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors 
has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, the Board recommends the 
ordinary resolution as set out under Item No.4 of the accompanying Notice for approval of 
the shareholders. 
  
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as set out under Item No.4 
of the accompanying Notice. 
 

Relevant documents are available for inspection in the Company during business hours till 
the date of the Annual General Meeting 
 

Item No.5 
 

In order to broad base the Board and to have good Corporate Governance practices, the Board 
of Directors of the Company have appointed Mr. Sudhakar Rao (DIN: 00267211) as an 
additional (Independent) Director with effect from November 22, 2023; He holds office of the 
Director for a maximum term of five (5) years from the date of appointment subject to the 
approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual general meeting (AGM) and shall not be liable 
to retire by rotation. 
 

Mr. Sudhakar joined the Indian Administrative Service (IAS) in 1973 and served till 2009 in 
various capacities in Govt. of Karnataka and Govt. of India. To name a few, he served as (i) the 
Member, Public Enterprises Selection Board (PESB), Government of India, (ii) as the Chief 
Secretary to the Government of Karnataka from 2008 to 2009, (iii) as the Development 
Commissioner, Government of Karnataka from 2007 to2008, (iv) as the Principal Secretary 
to the Chief Minister of Karnataka, (v) as the Chairman & Managing Director, Karnataka Urban 
Infrastructure Development and Finance Corporation (KUIDFC), Bangalore and the Minister 
(Economic Affairs), Embassy of India, Washington. 
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The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Sudhakar fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder for appointment as an Independent 
Director of the Company and also that his rich and varied management experience would 
immensely benefit the Company. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the 
appointment of Mr. Sudhakar as an Independent Director to hold office for the first term 
commencing from November 22, 2023 for a maximum term of 5 (five) years commencing 
from the date of appointment, is being placed before the Members at the ensuing 17th Annual 
General Meeting for their approval. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives of the Company, except 
Mr. Sudhakar, are concerned or interested in the resolution as set out in item No. 5. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of the AGM Notice 
for approval of the shareholders, as a Special  Resolution. 
 
Relevant documents are available for inspection in the Company during business 
hours till the date of the Annual General Meeting 
 
Item No.6 
 
In order to broad base the Board and to have good Corporate Governance practices, the Board 
of Directors of the Company have appointed Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi (DIN: 01509031)  as 
an additional (Independent) Director with effect from November 22, 2023; He holds office of 
the Director for a maximum term of five (5) years from the date of appointment subject to 
the approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual general meeting(AGM) and shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation. 
 
Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi, was born in 1955 in the state of Uttar Pradesh. Dr. Ravindra did 
his B-tech from IIT, Roorkee and Masters in Marketing from IGNOU, New Delhi. He is also a 
Ph. D. holder in Management Studies. 

Dr. Ravindra joined ONGC in 1976 and worked till 2007 in various areas, viz., IT Networks, 
Setcom, Infocom, Marketing and later promoted to Head Marketing and then as Head - Air 
logistics. In addition to this, he has worked as Chairman cum Managing Director in Pawan 
Hans Helicopters Limited from 2007 to 2012 and served as the Chairman of Hindustan 
Aeronautics Limited from 2012 to 2015 
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The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Sudhakar fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder for appointment as an Independent 
Director of the Company and also that his rich and varied management experience would 
immensely benefit the Company. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the 
appointment of Dr. Ravindra as an Independent Director to hold office for the first term 
commencing from November 22, 2023 for a maximum term of 5 (five) years commencing 
from the date of appointment, is being placed before the Members at the ensuing 17th Annual 
General Meeting for their approval. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives of the Company, except 
Dr. Ravindra, are concerned or interested in the resolution as set out in item No. 6. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution as set out in Item No. 6 of the AGM Notice 
for approval of the shareholders, as a Special Resolution. 
 
Relevant documents are available for inspection in the Company during business 
hours till the date of the Annual General Meeting 
 

                             
 By Order of the Board 

For GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited 
                  
 

                                                                                  Sd/- 
                                                                               Rakhal Panigrahi 

                                                                                                     Company Secretary        
Place: Hyderabad       
Date: September 05, 2024                                                                                                      
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BOARD’S REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
 
To,  
The Members,  
GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited 
 
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 17th (Seventeenth) Board’s Report of the 
Company together with the Audited annual financial statements for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2024. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 
 
The financial performance of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 as 
compared to the previous financial year, is summarized below: 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)   

 
 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

Revenue 
Turnover 
Other Income 

 
46,670.34   

1,704.99 

 
38,239.95 

971.46 

Total Income (i)  48375.33 39211.41 

Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 
Other expenses 

 
13,097.08 
22,392.10 

 
11,604.48 
20,456.68 

Total expenses (ii) 35,489.18 32,061.16 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 
amortization (i) – (ii) 

12,886.15 7,150.25 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 2,956.47 2,555.09 

Finance costs 3,601.32 3,572.8 

Profit before tax 6,328.36 1,022.36 

Deferred tax income - - 

Adjustments of tax relating to earlier periods   

Profit/(Loss) for the year  (iii) 6,328.36 1,022.36 

Other comprehensive income for the year 
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans 

 
-123.07 

 
-35.47 

Other comprehensive income for the year – (iv) - - 

Total comprehensive income for the year (iii)+(iv) 6,205.29 986.89 
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STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 
 

Operational Review 
 

For the year ended 31st March, 2024, your Company has earned a total income of Rs. 48,375.33 
lakhs, as against the previous year’s total income of Rs. 39,211.41 lakhs. The operations of the 
company during the year under review resulted in a net profit of Rs. 6328.36 lakhs as 
compared to a net profit of Rs. 1,022.36 lakhs in the previous year. 

 

Performance of MRO Division (doing business as GMR Aero Technic) 
 
The MRO Division of the Company provides base maintenance services and other allied 
services to the domestic and international customers at its MRO facility in Hyderabad and Line 
Maintenance services to the domestic and international customers at 13 airports in India and 
1 airport in Nepal.  The aircraft type services for base maintenance include Airbus A320 family, 
Boeing B737-NG & Max, Bombardier Q400 and ATRs.  
 
During the financial year 2023-24, the MRO Division achieved a total revenue of INR 323.0 
Crore and a Year-on-Year (YoY) growth of 15% when compared to previous year. It has also 
achieved EBITDA of INR 86.8 Crore, Cash profit of INR 55.5 Crore and PAT of INR 35.3 Crore. 
This is the fifth consecutive year of the MRO Division’s profitable operations. 
 
During this FY, the MRO Division of the Company has enhanced the capability of A320 with all 
engine versions up to the maximum MPD task of 80,000 FH, 45,000 FC and 18 years. 
Component rating has been enhanced to include nacelle components under our support 
agreement with Spirit Aero system, De Icer boots and ULD containers.  Also added capability 
to undertake limited engine maintenance under B rating on all engine types of Airbus and 
Boeing along with issue of EASA Form-1 and FAA 8130-3. 
 

Base Maintenance business highlights:  
 

With consistent efforts coupled with best service levels, the MRO division of the company has 
witnessed increased customer base, ranging from Middle East to Far East. This resulted in 
significant increase in export revenue. 
 
During the FY, the hanger capacity utilization was optimal. Based on the business demand and 
evolving market dynamics, we plan to expand our capacity and capabilities in the forthcoming 
years. 
 

Line Maintenance business highlights:  
 

MRO Division has achieved phenomenal growth in terms of number of stations, number of 
customers at various stations and annual revenue. As of now, MRO Division is having line 
maintenance capability at 13 Airports in India and 1 Airport in Nepal. MRO Division has 
expanded its footprint by commencing Line maintenance operations at Mumbai and Goa 
Airports.   
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Quality initiatives (Regulatory Approvals): 
 
The Company continues to strengthen its commitment to the highest levels of quality, superior 
customer experience, best-in-class service management, robust information security and 
privacy practices and mature business continuity management 
 
The MRO Division of the Company holds 29 International approvals including EASA and FAA. 

 

Business Strategies  
 

As part of the growth strategy and diversifying the business, MRO Division has forged 
partnerships with Spirit AeroSystems, Lufthansa Technik and other OEMs for enhancing 
component maintenance, repair and overhaul capabilities. Further, in the said financial year, 
GAT actively participated in tenders floated by Indian Air Force (IAF) and Centre for Airborne 
Systems (CABS). 

 

In addition to the above, GMR School of Aviation (A Strategic Business Unit of MRO Division) 
was virtually inaugurated by the Minister of Civil Aviation during the WINGS Event, held at 
Hyderabad. The School offers integrated 4-year licensed Aircraft Maintenance Engineering 
(AME) program approved by DGCA India and EASA. The School has commenced its academic 
session w.e.f. July 17, 2024 for 172 students. 

 

Further to enhance the efficiency, the MRO division has taken up many Continuous 
Improvement Projects for upskilling, comprehensive training programs for employees. The 
Company has conducted the Lean Six Sigma training, which was imparted to the employees 
for implementation. 
 

Mr. Ashok Gopinath (President and Accountable Manager) has been honored with MRO 
Leader of the Year Award at Asia Pacific Awards in September 2023. GMR MRO Division has 
received Best MRO Service Provider Award from Minister of Civil Aviation during the WINGS 
India Event, held in January 2024 at Hyderabad. 

 
Health, Safety and Environment  
 

Enhancing Health, Safety, and Environmental Practices: A Comprehensive Overview 
  

In today's dynamic corporate landscape, organizations recognize the paramount importance 
of health, safety, and environmental (HSE) initiatives. These efforts not only safeguard 
employees and the environment but also contribute to operational efficiency and long-term 
sustainability. Let's delve into the update and initiative undertaken by our company during 
the financial Year under review: 
  
 The MRO Division has obtained the certification for ISO 45001:2018 (Occupational Health 

and Safety Management Systems) and ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management 
Systems).  
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Information Technology 

 

During the year under review, your company has implemented the following IT initiatives: 
 

 Implementation of new version of ERP for better productivity & efficiency: System 
upgrade, business process re-engineering, SOPs, and adaption. 
 

 Provided IT Infrastructure for GMR School of Aviation & Junos ERP to meet the Int’l 
standards. 

 

 Adoption of New technologies: 
 

 Launched ORBIT: A single window helpdesk for all end users to log IT tickets and 
tracking of their tickets status and resolution. 
 

 Migration of email services from google workspace to MS-O365 and achieved more 
secured and align with the group. 

 

 Implemented RPA (BOT) for works package preparation, Freight invoice and vendor, 
invoice processing. 

 

 Digitalization: 
 

 Roll out of Success factor, Facility Management Service, Visitor Management System 
(Athithi). 
 

 Automatic capturing of Manhours in production area using Kiosk solution, thereby 
achieved the enhanced accuracy, productivity, streamlined processes and real time 
data. 

 

 Digitalization of Task cards which allow more effective scheduling and resource 
allocation by providing clear visibility into task progress and technician availability. 
 

 Mechanic Anywhere app - Online billing generation for Line and base maintenance 
activities. 

 

 Seamless implementation of Single sign on (SSO) - Improved end user experience and 
enabled more secured access management for various applications like for Ramco ERP, 
email, FMS, VMS. 
 

Performance of GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo Division (GHAC): 
 

GHAC achieved a total revenue of INR 161.04 Crore during the year under review with an 
EBTDA of 26%. In FY24, GHAC has handled about 1,43,147 MT of cargo, thereby standing out 
as one of the well-performing metro airports in a challenging market scenario.  
 

With an aim to increase stakeholder engagement and customer experience, GMR Hyderabad 
Air Cargo has undertaken the below major initiatives in the FY 24: 

 

 AERA Approval received for 32% Tariff increase for cargo and courier in FY 24 & 20% 
tariff increase YoY subsequently in FY25 & FY26. And the same has been implemented. 

 
 

 Launched International Import Courier/Express Cargo as a new line of business in 
November 2024, which promises to be one of the future growth drivers for GHAC 
business. 
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 New Cargo Specific ERP System (Kale Systems) has been implemented for both domestic 
and International for better performance to achieve operational excellence.  
 

 Renewed key Certifications: IATA Safety Audit for Ground Operations (ISAGO), 
Transported Asset Protection Association (TAPA), ISO 9001:2015 and WHO – GDP 
 

 GHAC Implemented 100% e- Caro Security Declaration (CSD) at the terminal. 
 

 The GHAC division of the Company also started working on several new-tech initiatives, 
digitization of Sec 48, focused on improving operational effectiveness. 

 
SHARE CAPITAL: 
 

The Authorized Share Capital of the company as on 31st March, 2024 is Rs.700,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Seven Hundred Crores) divided into 70,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. 
 

During the year under review, your Company has not changed the capital structure and the 
paid-up equity capital as on 31st March, 2024 is INR 455,84,89,350 /- comprising of 
45,58,48,935 (Forty-Five Crore Fifty-Eight Lakhs Forty-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and 
Thirty-Five) equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 
 

DIVIDEND: 
 

Due to accumulated losses of the Company, the Board of Directors have not recommended 
any dividend to its shareholders for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 

APPROPRIATIONS TO RESERVES: 
 

Due to accumulated losses of the Company, the Board of Directors do not propose to carry 
any amount to any reserves for the year under review. 
 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:   
 

There was no employee drawing remuneration in excess of limits prescribed under section 
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
 

DEPOSITS: 
 

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any deposits within the meaning 
of provisions of Chapter V – Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.  
 

RATING:  
 

The Rupee Term Loan of INR 300 Crore from NIIF IFL carries an instrument rating of 
[ICRA]AA (CE) (Stable) and outlook revised to Stable from Positive; and the working Capital 
of INR 45 Crores carries an instrument rating of [ICRA] AA- (Stable) Reaffirmed; Assigned by 
ICRA Limited respectively as on 31st March, 2024. 
 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY: 
 

During the year under review, there is no change in the business of the Company. 
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS: 

 

The Company received the following awards / accolades during the period under review 
recognizing the significant contributions made in different facets of functional excellence. 

 

Achievements of MRO Division 
 

 Achieved YoY 15% growth of revenue compared to previous year.  
 

 Achieved highest gross revenue of INR 323.00 Crore till date with a fifth consecutive year 
PAT positive of INR 35.32 Crore. 

 

 GAT was selected on a global competitive bidding process by Boeing Company for B-737 
Freighter Conversion Project.  

 

Achievements of GHAC Division 
 

GHAC has shown great resiliency in this global crisis and is moving towards a sustainable 
future along with its stakeholders with various initiatives for strengthening its business: 

 

 GHAC total Cargo Volume grew by 11% YoY. Relatively better growth compared to peer 
metro airports. 

 

 Handled highest cargo 1,43,147 MT since inception. And recorded highest tonnage 
handled in a month ever since inception, first in Dec’23 (12,535 MT), again in Feb’24 
(13,032 MT) & March’24 (14,853 MT). 

 

 Similarly, handled 733 MT in a day, which is the highest ever in GHAC. 
 

 Succeeded in diverting cargo from BOM, BLR and MAA thus added incremental tonnage 
 

 GHAC has seamlessly handled high value shipments predominantly Pharma and 
Vaccines to various International and Domestics destinations.  

 

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
  

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company during the period between end of the financial year and date of this Report. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

The Board of Directors supports the broad principles of Corporate Governance. The Board 
has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its consideration and decision. 
 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 
As on 31st March, 2024, the Company has eight Directors on its Board with an optimum 
combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors including woman director. The details 
of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are as below: 
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Board of Directors: 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Directors Designation 

1 Mr. G B S Raju Non-Executive Chairman 
2 Mr. Gopalakrishna Kishore Surey Non-Executive Director 
3 Mr. Rajesh Kumar Arora Non-Executive Director 
4 Mr. Puthalath Sukumaran Nair Non-Executive Director 
5 Dr. Kavitha Gudapati (resigned with effect from 

September 13, 2023) 
Woman Director 

6 Mr. Pradeep Panicker Non-Executive Director 
7 Mrs. Bijal Tushar Ajinkya  Woman Independent Director 
8 Mr. Sudhakar Rao (appointed with effect from 

November 22, 2023) 
Independent Director 

9 Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi (appointed with effect 
from November 22, 2023) 

Independent Director 

 

Key Managerial Personnel: 
 

Sl. No. Name Designation 
1 Mr. Kandi Sreenivasulu Chief Financial Officer 
2 Mr. G. Chandrabushan Manager 
3 Mr. Rakhal Panigrahi Company Secretary  

 
Changes in the Composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) during the Financial Year: 
 

The Board comprises of Eight Non-Executive Directors, out of which three are Independent 
Directors. 
 
 

a) Mrs. Bijal Tushar Ajinkya, who had been appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. March 
29, 2023, subject to approval of shareholders. Her appointment as an Independent 
Director was approved by the shareholders at the AGM held on September 27, 2023. 
 

b) Dr. Kavitha Gudapati resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f. September 13, 2023. The 
Board of Directors placed on record its appreciation for the services rendered by her. 

 

Re-appointments / Change in Designation 
 

In the Board Meeting held on July 17, 2024, the Board of Directors has approved following 
appointments / re-appointments, subject to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing AGM 
of the Company: 

 

a) As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Chairman of the Board, Mr. GBS 
Raju (DIN: 00061686) and Mr. SGK Kishore (DIN: 02916539), retires by rotation at the 
ensuing AGM and, being eligible, seeks reappointment at the ensuing AGM. 
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b) Mr. Sudhakar Rao (DIN: 01976832) and Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi (DIN: 01509031) 
were appointed as Additional Directors categorized as Independent for a period of five 
(5) years with effect from November 22, 2023. Their appointment as Independent 
Directors will be placed for approval of shareholders at the ensuing AGM. 

 

Committees of the Board 
 

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, currently, there are two Committees of the 
Board;  
 

1. Audit Committee 
2. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors was dissolved at the 
Board meeting held on 21st September, 2021 pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Amendment Rules in July, 2017 and the MCA Notification dated 
19th February, 2021. 

 

Board Meetings: 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company met four times during financial year under review and 
the details of attendance of Directors at such meetings is given as under: 
 

S. 
No. 

Name of the Director                           Dates of the Board Meetings 

29-04-2023 28-07-2023 22-11-2023 09-02-2024 
1 Mr. GBS Raju LOA LOA LOA Yes 

2 Mr. Gopala Krishna Kishore 
Surey  

Yes Yes LOA LOA 

3. Mr. Puthalath Sukumaran Nair  Yes Yes Yes Yes 
4. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Arora  Yes Yes Yes Yes 

5. Dr. Kavitha Gudapati (till 
13.09.2023) 

LOA LOA NA NA 

6. Mr. Pradeep Panicker LOA Yes Yes Yes 

7. Mrs. Bijal Tushar Ajinkya Yes Yes Yes Yes 

8. Mr. Sudhakar Rao (w.e.f 
22.11.2023) 

NA NA Yes Yes 

9. Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi 
(w.e.f 22.11.2023) 

NA NA Yes Yes 

    

   (Attended-Yes; Leave of Absence-LOA; Not Applicable - NA) 
 
NUMBER OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24: 
 

Audit Committee Meetings 
 

The Board of Directors of GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited at their meeting 
held on November 22, 2023 constituted the Audit Committee with the following directors as 
per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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Composition:  
 

1)   Mr. P S Nair, Chairman 
2)   Mr. Sudhakar Rao, Independent Director & Member 
3)   Mrs. Bijal Tushar Ajinkya, Independent Director & Member 
4)   Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi, Independent Director & Member 
5)   Mr. Rajesh Kumar Arora, Non-Executive Director & Member 
 
The details of Audit Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24 are as under: 

 
S. 
No. 

Name of the Committee 
Member 

 Dates of the Audit Committee 
Meeting 

20-01-2024 

1 Mr. P S Nair Yes 
2 Mr. Sudhakar Rao Yes 
3 Mr. Rajesh Kumar Arora LOA 
4 Mrs. Bijal Tushar Ajinkya LOA 
5 Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi Yes 

 

(Attended-Yes; Leave of Absence-LOA; Not Applicable - NA) 
 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee: - 
 

The CSR Committee was reconstituted at the Board Meeting held on November 22, 2023 with 
following composition, consequent to the resignation of Dr. Kavitha Gudapati on September 
13, 2023:  

 

 

1) Mr. Rajesh Arora, Director, Chairman 
2) Mrs. Bijal Tushar Ajinkya Independent Director and Member  

        3) Mr. P S Nair, Director, Non-Executive and Member 
 

One CSR Committee Meeting was held during the financial year 2023-24 and the details of 
attendance of the Members at such meeting, are as under: 
 

S. No. Name of the Committee Member 28-07-2023 

1. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Arora Yes 

2. Dr. Kavitha Gudapati Yes 

3. Mr. P.S. Nair Yes 
 

           (Attended-Yes; Leave of Absence-LOA; Not Applicable - NA) 
 

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors: 
 

During the financial year under review, in terms of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, no separate meeting of the Independent 
Directors was held as the provisions were not applicable to the Company. 
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General Meetings: 
 

During the Financial Year, the Extra Ordinary General Meeting and Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) of the Company were held on August 11, 2023 and September 27, 2023 respectively. 
 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 
 
The applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of 
the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied with  
by the Company. 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 
obtained, your Directors confirm the following statements in terms of Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013: 

 

a. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 
2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 

b. that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note No. 2 of Notes to the financial 
statements have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have 
been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for the 
year ended on that date; 
 

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

d. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
 

e. that proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down 
and that the financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 

 

f. that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established 
and maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and 
secretarial auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management 
and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion 
that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2023-
24. 
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STATEMENT ON DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
 

Based on the confirmation / disclosures received from Independent Directors and on 
evaluation of the relationships disclosed, the following Directors are Independent in terms of 
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder: - 
 

1. Mr. Sudhakar Rao 
2. Mr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi 
3. Mrs Bijal Tushar Ajinkya 

 
BOARD EVALUATION: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out the annual 
performance evaluation for the financial year, in respect of the Board and Committees, the 
Chairman, Self and Peers of the Directors. The exercise was carried out by circulating the 
structured and separate questionnaires among the Directors through DESS Digital Meeting 
Platform, for the Board and Committees Evaluation; the Chairman’s Evaluation; the Directors’ 
Self-Evaluation; and the Directors’ Peer Evaluation, after taking into consideration various 
aspects of the management and governance.  The Directors have successfully completed the 
said evaluation through DESS Digital Meeting Platform. Outcome of the board evaluation 
process was discussed at the Board Meeting held on September 5, 2024. 
 
COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company covering Director’s appointment, 
remuneration, criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a 
Director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 is placed on the 
website of the Company www.gmraerotech.in.    

 
1) Remuneration paid to the Managing Director (MD), Whole-time Directors (WTD) and / 

or Manager (Key Managerial Personnel) during the financial year: 
 

Name of the Manager Remuneration 
(Amount in Lakh) 

Mr. G Chandrabushan 33.93 
 

2) Sitting fees paid to the Independent Directors during the financial year 2023-24:  
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Independent Directors Sitting fees paid  
(Amount in Rs.) 

1 Dr. Kavitha Gudapati (till 13.09.2023) 15,000 
2 Mr. Sudhakar Rao (w e f 22.11.2023) 1,20,000 
3 Mrs. Bijal Tushar Ajinkya 1,10,000 
4 Dr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi (w e f 22.11.2023) 1,20,000 

Total 3,65,000 



 
 

Board’s Report                                                  GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited  

24 
 

 
Other than the aforesaid payment of the sitting fees during the Financial Year 2023-24, there 
were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions between the Non-Executive Directors 
and the Company. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
During the FY 2023-24, your Company has not extended any loans/guarantees/investments 
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, to any company. 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
REFERRED TO IN SECTION 188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
All transactions entered into with the related parties during the financial year under review 
were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Your Company has not 
entered into any contracts or arrangements with the related parties referred to in Section 
188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as such no particulars are required to be given. 
 
All related party transactions (RPTs) are placed before the Board for approval. Omnibus 
approval was obtained on a yearly basis for transactions which were of a repetitive nature. 
All the transactions with the related parties are audited by the Management Assurance Group 
(MAG, Internal Auditors) of the Company, before being placed before the Board for their 
review and approval. The MAG team confirms that whether the transactions are at arms 
length basis. All RPTs are mentioned in the Note No. 33 to the Notes to the Financial 
Statements of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the particulars relating to 
energy and technology absorption stipulated in the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are 
not applicable. 
  
During the year ended 31st March, 2024, the particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo are as given below:          

                    (Rs. In Crores) 
Particulars For the year ended 

31.03.2024 
For the year  ended 
31.03.2023 

Foreign Exchange Earnings 
MRO Division 
GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo Division 
Total 

308.96  
2.80 

246.35 
1.65 

311.76 248.00 
Foreign outgo (expenditure) 

MRO Division 
GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo Division 
Total 

64.05 
0.55 

59.28 
0.79 

64.60 60.07 
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RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 
The Company has established an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework to identify, 
assess, monitor and mitigate various risks that may affect the organization. As per the ERM 
framework, the risks are identified considering the internal and external environment. Such 
risks and their mitigation measures are reviewed by the Board at their meeting once in a year. 
The Board does not perceive any risk that threatens the existence of the company. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM: 
 
Your Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business 
and the size and complexity of its operations. 
 
Your Company’s internal control procedures ensure compliance with various policies, 
practices and statutes in keeping with the organization’s pace of growth and increasing 
complexity of operations. The MAG of the Company, carries out extensive audits throughout 
the year, across all functional areas and submits its reports to the Board. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY: 
  
Your Company has adopted policies and procedures including the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fraud and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013.  
  
During the year under review, such controls were reviewed and tested by the Internal 
Auditors and found to be adequate. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND STATEMENT 
UNDER SECTION 129(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
As on 31st March, 2024, your Company has one wholly owned subsidiary, viz., GMR Aero 
Technic Limited. 
 
GATL is mainly into MRO Consultancy business. The operations of the subsidiary during the 
year under review resulted in a net loss of Rs. 3.15 Lakhs as compared to a net loss of Rs. 3.45 
Lakhs in the previous year. 
 

A statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s 
subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is attached as Annexure-1. 
 

The Company has no associate and joint venture companies as on 31st March, 2024. 
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AUDITORS: 
 

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 

M/s. K.S. Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 003109S), Bengaluru, were 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting ('AGM') held 
on September 22, 2021 of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of 14th AGM i.e. 
September 22, 2021 till the conclusion of 19th AGM. M/s. K.S. Rao & Co., have given their 
consent for their re-appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company.  
 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the audit report for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, the Board had reappointed M/s. KBG Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries 
in Practice (Firm Registration No. P2009AP006100 and Certificate of Practice No. 6262) 
represented by its Partner Mr. Srikrishna Chintalapati, to conduct the Audit of the secretarial 
records of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report dated 
July 17, 2024 is appended to this Report as Annexure - 2.  
 

The Secretarial Auditors’ Report for FY 2023-24, does not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer. 

  
COST AUDITORS: 

 

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is required to be done by the Company and 
accordingly such accounts and records are made and maintained. The Board of Directors 
have approved the re-appointment of M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co, as Cost Auditors of the 
Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2025, under section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Board also recommends to the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, ratification of remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000 (Rupees Two Lakh Fifty 
Thousand Only) payable to the Cost Auditor. 

 
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the cost audit report for the 
financial year. 
 
DETAILS OF RESPECT OF FRAUDS, IF ANY, REPORTED BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS:  
 
During the year under review, no offence involving fraud committed against the Company by 
any officers or employees of the Company was reported by the Statutory Auditors to the 
Board pursuant to Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 including rules made 
thereunder. 
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

 
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 and subsequent Amendment Rules, 2021 effective from March 
05, 2021, the draft Annual Return is posted on Company’s website at 
https://www.gmraerotech.in/investors-relations.aspx. 

 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 

 
The Company is driven by Group’s vision on CSR to make a difference, specifically to society 
by contributing to the economic development of the country and improving the quality of life 
of the local communities. The Company has constituted a CSR Committee on June 04, 2020 in 
accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Details about the CSR Policy and CSR initiatives undertaken by your Company during the 
financial year are given in the CSR Report 2023-24, as required under the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, which is annexed to this report as 
Annexure-3. 
 
The Company’s CSR Policy is available on our website, at https://www.gmraerotech.in/ 
investors-relations.aspx  
 
CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC): 
 
There are no applications filed for corporate insolvency resolution process, by any financial 
or operational creditor or by the company itself under the IBC before the NCLT during the 
financial year. 
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
 
The Company has in place an Anti-Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. Internal Complaint Committee is set up to redress complaints received regularly. All 
(permanent, contractual, temporary trainees) are covered under the policy. 
 
During the financial year, the Company has no complaints outstanding as on last year and has 
not received any complaint pertaining sexual harassment during the year. 
 
VIGIL MECHANISM: 
 
The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors, regular employees and 
consultants of the Company, including advisors, in-house consultants, Whole-time Directors 
and employees on contract. This Policy also applies to third parties with any commercial 



 
 

Board’s Report                                                  GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited  

28 
 

dealings with the Company, including vendors, service providers, partners, joint venture 
employees and customers. Any Whistle Blower making a complaint under this Policy may 
make a Disclosure to the Company’s Ombudsperson – Mr. HJ Dora, Director on the Board of 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited, Holding Company, through the following 
modes. 
 
(a) Oral complaints through teleconference or by personally meeting the Ombudsperson, or 

by calling 1800-1020-467 or such other number as is set out on the Company’s website 
at www.gmraerotech.in 

 
(b) Complaints filed through Electronic Means to gmr@ethicshelpline.in to raise a concern 

under the Policy. 
 
The Policy provides for maintaining confidentiality and protection to the Whistle Blower 
against any victimization. 
 
There were no complaints outstanding as on last year or received during the year. 
 
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/ 
COURTS/TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY’S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE: 
 

No significant material orders have been passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere thanks and gratitude to GMR Air 
Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited, various Government and Government Agencies 
and all the employees who have extended their co-operation and support in achieving the 
goals that the company is established for. 
 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited 

 
 
                Sd/-                Sd/- 
Place: Hyderabad                                                          Pradeep Panicker           PS Nair 
Date:    September 05, 2024                                                   Director                               Director           
                                                                                                     DIN: 02730418                  DIN: 00063118                  
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Annexure-1 to GACAEL Board’s Report FY 2022-23 
 

Form AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 
 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 
 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1.  Name of the subsidiary GMR Aero Technic Limited 
2.  Reporting period for the subsidiary 

concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period 

March 31, 2024 

3.  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on 
the last date of the relevant Financial year 
in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

Not Applicable 

4.  Share capital 10,00,000 
5.  Reserves & surplus (6,09,000) 
6.  Total assets 41,76,000 
7.  Total Liabilities 41,76,000 
8.  Investments Nil 
9.  Turnover Nil 
10. Profit before taxation (3,15000) 
11. Provision for taxation Nil 
12. Profit after taxation (3,15000) 
13. Proposed Dividend NIL 
14. % of shareholding 100% 

 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited 

 
 
 
                                                     

                            Sd/-         Sd/- 
Place: Hyderabad                              PS Nair                          Pradeep Panicker   
Date:  September 05, 2024             Director  Director                               

                       DIN: 00063118                        DIN:02730418                  
           

                                                            Sd/-                           Sd/- 
                                      Kandi Sreenivasulu        Rakhal Panigrahi 
                                  Chief Financial Officer          Company Secretary 



 
 

Annexure – 2 to GACAEL Board’s Report FY 2023-24 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014] 

1. A Brief outline of the Company’ s CSR Policy: 
 

GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited (the Company) forming part of GMR Group has adopted the CSR Policy of GMR Group. 
GMR Group recognizes that its business activities have wide impact on the societies in which it operates and therefore an effective practice 
is required giving due consideration to the interests of its stakeholders including shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, business 
partners, local communities and other organizations. 

 
The Company is driven by Group’s vision to make a difference, specifically to society by contributing to the economic development of the 
country and improving the quality of life of the local communities. Towards this vision, the Company, through GMR Varalakshmi Foundation 
(GMRVF), help partners with the communities around the businesses to drive various initiatives in the areas of (i) Education, (ii) Health, 
Hygiene and sanitation, (iii) Empowerment Livelihood and Community Development. 
 
PROJECTS OR PROGRAMMES PROPOSED TO BE UNDERTAKEN: 
 
The Company is carrying out out its CSR activities on its own, or in having special circumstances contribute funds to GMRVF, towards 
activities / programmes broadly within the ambit given below:  
 

1) Education 
2) Health, Hygiene and Sanitation 
3) Empowerment & Livelihoods and Community Development 
4) Environmental sustainability 
5) Heritage and Culture 
6) Benefit to Armed Forces 
7) Sports 
8) Contribution to Funds set up by Government 
9) Contribution towards Technology 



 
 

10) Rural Development 
11) Slum Area Development 
12) Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities 
13) Such other activities included in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director and Designation Chairman/ 
Member 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 

during the year 
 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 

during the year 
 

1.  Mr. Rajesh Kumar Arora Chairman 1 1 
2.  Dr. Kavitha Gudapati Member 1 1 
3.  Mr. P.S. Nair Member 1 1 

 
3. Web link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website 

of the Company:  
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Web-Links 

i. Composition of CSR Committee https://www.gmraerotech.in/ 
ii. CSR Policy https://www.gmraerotech.in/ 

 

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not applicable. 
 

5.    (a) Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013: ₹ 6,67,82,697 
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ₹ 13,35,654~13,36,000 
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil 
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5b+5c-5d): ₹ 13,36,000 



 
 

 
 
 

6.  
Sr. No. Particulars Amount (₹ in Lakhs) 

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects  12,69,200 
(b) Amount spent on Administrative Overheads 66,800 
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment - 
(d) Total amount spent for the financial year (6a+6b+6c) 13,36,000 

 
e)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year. 
(₹ in lakhs) 
 

Amount Unspent (in ₹) 
 
Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per Section 135(6). 
 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5). 
 

 Amount (₹ in 
lakhs) 

 

Date of transfer. 
 

Name of the 
Fund 

Amount. Date of transfer. 
 

    
 

(f)  Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil. 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (₹ in Lakhs) 
(i) Two percent of the average net profit of the Company as per 

Section 135(5) of the Act 
 

(ii) Total amount spent for the financial year 13,36,000 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [f(ii)-f(i)] Nil 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

activities of the previous financial years, if any 
Nil 

(v) The amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 
[f(iii)-f(iv)] 

Nil 



 
 

 
 
 
 

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

Sr. 
No. 
 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year 
 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 
(₹ in lakhs) 
 

Balance Amount 
in Unspent CSR 
Account under 
Section 135(6) 
of 
the Act as on 
1st April, 2023, 
(₹ in lakhs) 
 

Amount spent in 
the reporting 
Financial Year 
(₹ in lakhs). 
 

Amount transferred to any 
fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per section 135(6), if any 
 

Amount 
remaining 
as on 
31st March 2024 
to be spent 
in succeeding 
financial years 
(₹ in lakhs) 
 

Name 
of the 
Fund 
 

Amount 
(₹ in 
lakhs) 

Date of 
transfer. 
 

1. F.Y. 2020-21        
2. F.Y. 2021-22        
3. F.Y. 2022-23        

 TOTAL        
 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the financial year: Nil 
 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): N.A 
 
 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 

Sd/- 
PS Nair 

(Director).  

Sd/- 
Rajesh Arora 

(Chairman CSR Committee). 
 



 

Form No. MR-3 
Secretarial Audit Report 

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To 
The Members 
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited 
Plot No. 1, GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited 
Rajiv Gandhi International Airport, Shamshabad 
Hyderabad, Telangana, India – 500 108 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited. 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit; we hereby report that in our 
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter : 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the 
provisions of: 
 

Sl Particulars 
 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 
 

2. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
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Sl 
 

Particulars 

3. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)  
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015; 
 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 
 

(d) The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Debenture Trustee) (Amendment) Regulations 2017 
 

4.  We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 

1. Under the Companies Act, 2013 
 

A.  
 

That based on our examination and verification of the records produced to us and according to the 
information and explanations given to us by the Company that the Company has, in our opinion, 
complied with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made under 
the Act and Memorandum, and Articles of Association of the Company, inter alia with regard to : 
 

a.  Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries 
therein; 
 

b.  Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Register of 
Companies and the Central Government; 
 

c. Service of documents by the company on its members and Registrar of Companies. 
 

d. Notices, Agenda and Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its 
Committee meetings including Circular Resolution; 
 

e. The meetings of : 
 

i. Board of Directors held on 29th April, 2023; 28th July, 2023, 22nd November, 2023, and 

9th February, 2024 (including the Circular Resolutions passed during the year)  

ii. CSR Committee held on 28th July, 2023 

iii. Audit Committee Meeting held on 20th Jan 2024.   

 
  



 

Sl Particulars 
 

 f.  The Annual General Meeting held on 27th September, 2023 and One (1) Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting taken place on 11th August, 2023 during the year under review;  
 

g. Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors wherever required; 
 

h. Constitution of the Board of Directors, appointment, retirement and reappointment of Directors; 
 

i. Payment of remuneration to Directors / Key Managerial Personnel;   
 

j. Appointment and remuneration of Auditors; 
 

k. Transfer and transmission of Company's shares and issue and dispatch of duplicate share 
certificates. There were no transfers and transmission of shares during the financial year; 
 

l.  the Company has not declared any dividend during the financial year under review; 
m Transfer of Unpaid and Unclaimed dividend to the Investor Education and Protection Fund – 

Not Applicable  
 

n. Borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable; 
 

o. Investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary; 
 

p. Form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part I, form of statement of profit and loss as 
prescribed under Part II and General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in 
Schedule III to the Act; 
 

q. Directors’ Report; 
 

r.  Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company.  
 

B. Under the Companies Act, 2013, we further report that  
 

i. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act. 
 

During the year under review:  
 

(a) Mrs. Bijal Tushar Ajinkya was appointed as Additional Director in the Board Meeting held on 
29th March, 2023 and had been regularized in the AGM held on 27th September, 2023  
 

(b) Dr Kavitha Gudapati resigned as Director wef 13th September 2023.  
 

(c) Dr Ravindra Kumar Tyagi and Mr. Sudhakar Rao who have been appointed as Additional 
Directors (Independent) in the Board Meeting held on 22nd November, 2023 for a period of 5 
years; their regularization in the AGM will become due for FY 2023-24 AGM.  

 

  



 

Sl Particulars 
ii. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation 
at the meeting. 
 

iii. All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out on requisite majority and 
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the 
case may be. 
 

iv. There was no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during the year under review 
under the Act, Depositories Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / 
on the Company, its Directors and Officers. 
 

v. We further report that as permitted under Sec 181 of the Act, the Board in its meeting held on 11th 
August, 2023 accorded its approval to contribute an amount of £145,833 and equivalent INR 
1,54,58,298/- to Shrewsbury School Foundation, United Kingdom. Since the said amount is beyond the 
threshold limit of 5% of 3 years Average Net Profit; the Board took the approval of members in their 
meeting held on 11th August, 2023 (conducted at shorter notice).  
 

We have been given to understand that since the amount do not exceed USD $ 2,50,000; as per 
Liberalized Remittance Scheme (LRS) under FEMA, 1999 approval is not required for this donation 
from RBI.  
 

vi. We further report that as permitted under Sec 181 & Sec 182 of the Act, the Board in its meeting 
held on 9th February, 2024 accorded its approval to contribute an amount of 10.50 cr to Electoral 
Companies.  

vii. We further report that as permitted under Sec 179 (3) of the Act, the Board in its meeting held on 9th 
February, 2024 accorded its approval to Invest in M/s. Innovex Capital Fund-1 to the tune of Rs. 10.00 
cr.  

viii. We further report that the Company availed Loan from NIIF to the tune of Rs. 3000.00 lacs in 
previous years is well within the limits obtained from members as per Sec 180 (1) (a) and Sec 180 (1) 
(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

2. Under the Depositories Act, 1996, we report that 
 

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and the Byelaws framed 
thereunder by the Depositories with regard to dematerialization / rematerialisation of securities and 
reconciliation of records of dematerialized securities with all securities issued by the Company. 
 

3. Under FEMA, 1999, we report that 
 

 As per the declarations issued by the Quarterly Compliance Certificate issued by CEO of the Company 
(and submitted to the Board of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial year 2023-
2024 (for all 4 quarters), we are of opinion that the Company has complied with the provisions of the 
FEMA, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made under that Act to the extent applicable. 
 

 
 



 

Sl Particulars 
 

4. Under the SEBI Act, We report that   
 

a. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 with regard to maintenance of 
records required under the Regulations. 
 

5. Under other Applicable laws, we report that  
 Based on the Quarterly Compliance Certificate issued by CEO of the Company (and 

submitted to the Board of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial year 
2023-2024 (for all 4 quarters), we are of opinion there has been due compliance of all the 
Laws to the extent applicable. 
 

6.  We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 

         
For KBG Associates 
Company Secretaries 

        Firm Regn No # P2009AP006100 
      PRC: P2009AP6100/1103/2021 

 
 
                               
                                                                                                                    Sd/- 

       (Srikrishna Chintalapati) 
Place: Hyderabad                        Partner 
Date:  16th July, 2024                                          CP # 6262  

               UDIN: F005984F000747978 
  



 

 

 
‘ANNEXURE-A’ 

 

 

To, 
The Members 
GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited 
Plot No. 1, GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited 
Rajiv Gandhi International Airport, Shamshabad 
Hyderabad, Telangana, India-500108 
 
Our report for the even date to be read with the following Letter; 
 
Sl Particulars 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company. 
 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 
 

7. Though the audit scope includes such other Acts (not involving Companies Act, all Securities related Acts and 
FEMA); due to time, legal verification, transaction validation, expert knowledge (at certain peak levels) limitations and 
resulting in consequent omission of even random checking on various Acts (such as Labour Laws, Pollution and 
Environment related Laws, Laws governing Aircraft and Airport Authorities of India Act,1994, all connected State and 
Central such other applicable Acts); we had to rely upon the undertaking, declaration and written representation from 
the management only and had to be certified thereon. 
 

         
    For KBG Associates 
   Company Secretaries 

 
 

    
                                                                                                                Sd/-    

                                                                       (Srikrishna Chintalapati) 
Place: Hyderabad                    Partner 
Date:  16th July, 2024                                      CP # 6262 

           UDIN: F005984F000747978 
 
 
 



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. GMR Air Cargo and 
Aerospace Engineering Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India 
including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the 
state of affairs (financial position) of the company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit (financial 
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India(‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.



Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Company is primarily in the business
of providing Aerospace Engineering and 
Cargo Services to the Airlines.

With respect to Aerospace Engineering 
services, The Company is having two 
models for the purpose of recognition of 
revenue for services rendered, which are
time and material contracts and fixed price
contracts.

For the year ended March 31, 2024, 
Revenue from such services amounts to Rs. 
31,674.10 Lakhs.

The existing ERP system has limitation, of 
capturing the manhours spent and effective 
use of materials issued rate for each aircraft 
in billing, due to which billing is computed 
manually may have an impact on accuracy
and completeness of the revenue
recognised for the year.

In response to the key matter, the following principal
Audit procedures performed:

Our procedures included:

• We ensured that revenue recognition method applied 
was appropriate based on the terms of the agreement with 
the customer.

• We obtained an understanding of the processes and 
tested relevant controls, which impact the revenue 
recognition.

For time and material-based contracts:

i. We obtained appropriate evidence based on the
circumstances to conclude whether the hours 
charged on projects were appropriate;

ii. We obtained appropriate evidence based on the
circumstances to conclude whether the rate 
charged per man hours on projects were 
appropriate; and

iii. We verified the revenue based on the hours charged
on the projects and approved rate per hour.

For fixed price contracts:

We selected a sample of contracts with customers and 
performed the following procedures.

i. We verified the total revenue with customer
contracts agreements including amendments as 
appropriate;

ii. We assessed the reliability of management’s
estimates by comparing actual results of delivered 
projects to previous estimates;

iii. We evaluated management’s estimates and
assumptions in recognition of the revenue;

iv. We verified the revenue based on the stage of
completion of the projects; and

v. We obtained appropriate evidence based on the
circumstances to conclude whether the proportion 
of completion of projects was appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed we consider the 
amount of revenue recognised to be fairly stated in the 
standalone financial statements.



Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibilities and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements:

6. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board 
of Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134

(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.



8. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements:

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(ii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.



(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalone financial statements.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

15. As required by Sec 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its 
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section
197 read with schedule V to the Act.

16. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in “Appendix - A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extend applicable.

17. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.



b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone 
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2024 
from being appointed as directors in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in “Appendix-B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its  standalone  financial  statements  – (Refer  Note  39b ) to  the  standalone  financial

statements),

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iv.
a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 

than as disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or



provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to 
believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above 
contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31,
2024.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 
1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For K.S Rao & Co., 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 003109S

Hitesh Kumar P 
Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership No. 233734
Date:  April 26, 2024 UDIN No:

Sd/-



Appendix – A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Appendix referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report that:

(i)  In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

(a)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’) and
relevant details of Right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its PPE and ROU Assets 
for every three years which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with the program, physical 
verification has been conducted during the year by engaging an outside expert, and no
material discrepancies were noted on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are 
held in the name of the Company other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company 
as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)
(a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the

Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on 
physical verification.

(b) As per the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of five Crores on the basis of security of current assets, 
movable assets and lease hold rights of the land. However, the company is not required to 
submit quarterly stock statements or receivable statements. Hence reporting under this
clause is not applicable.



(iii)

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood 
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year and hence reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not 
made any investments or granted any loans during the year and accordingly reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not 
made any investments or granted any loans during the year and accordingly reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not 
granted loans which had fallen due during the year and were repaid on or before the due
date.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable 
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has no loans, investments, guarantee and security which meets the requirements of section 185
and 186 of the Act.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits and does not have any unclaimed deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of 
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, 
the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1)
of the Act, for the services rendered by the Company, and are of the opinion that prima facie,
the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not 
conducted a detailed examination of the same.

(vii)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records as 
produced and examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular  in depositing with 
appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues including  provident fund, 
employee’s state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and other 
material statutory dues, as applicable, and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory 
dues as at  March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months form date they become



payable.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of 

income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, 
excise duty, cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute except for the below:

Name of the Statute Nature of
Dues

Amount 
Involved

(In lakhs)

Period for
which the

amount
Relates

Forum where Dispute is
pending

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income tax 417.17 AY 2015-
16

CIT (Appeals),
Hyderabad

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax
(including 
penalty)

591.99 March
2008 to 
June 2010

Customs, Excise &
Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Hyderabad

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax
(including 
penalty)

128.05 2013-14 to
2015-16

Customs, Excise &
Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Hyderabad

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax 16.47 AY 2016-
17

CIT (Appeals),
Hyderabad

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 210.57 October
2013 to
June 2017

Director General of GST
Intelligence, Hyderabad
Zonal Unit

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax 72.45 AY 2018-
19

CIT (Appeals),
Hyderabad

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax 2,397.42 AY 2017-
18

High Court

Employees
Provident Funds
and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952

Provident
Fund

14.26 2017-18 High Court

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

(ix)

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution
and banks.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender;

(c) The Company has applied the loans for which the loans were obtained.



(d) On an overall examination of standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised 
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the

obligations of its subsidiaries.
(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in

its subsidiaries, hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company 
has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer or debt
instruments and hence the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi)

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair 
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the 
period.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report as it is not
applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us, during the year the
company has not received any whistle blower complaints.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the books of account,

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.



(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi)

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion, the company is not conducting any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made 
by RBI. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information explanation provided to us, the group has two CICs as a part
of its group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any 
unspent amount in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the end of the 
financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said



clause under this report.

Place: Hyderabad

For K.S. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no: 003109S

Hitesh Kumar P
Partner
Membership No: 233734

Date:  April 26, 2024 UDIN No.:

Sd/-



Appendix - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of 
M/s. GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued 
by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control



based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that,

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAI.

Place: Hyderabad

For K.S Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 003109S

Hitesh Kumar P
Partner
Membership No: 233734

Date: April 26, 2024 UDIN No.:

Sd/-



GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141
Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
As at

 March 31, 2024
As at

 March 31, 2023
Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 19,433.73                      13,961.80                          
Capital Work in Progress 3A 630.76                           2,404.12                            
Other intangible assets 5 9,012.61                        9,299.03                            
Intangible assets under development 6 193.55                           165.79                               
Right-of-use assets 4 3,002.10                        2,525.03                            
Financial assets

i) Investments 7(a) 883.88                           10.00                                 
ii) Other financial Assets 7(b) 211.85                           152.57                               

Deferred tax asset (net) 8 -                                -                                    
Non-current tax assets(Net) 9 3,421.07                        3,803.82                            
Other non-current assets 10 471.20                           1,332.76                            

37,260.75                      33,654.92                          
Current assets
Inventories 11 6,040.78                        5,876.52                            
Financial assets

i) Investments 7(a) 8,429.64                        5,516.86                            
ii) Trade receivables 12 7,911.71                        4,766.64                            
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13(a) 892.97                           996.89                               
iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 13(b) 314.27                           203.12                               
v) Other financial assets 7(b) 1,808.49                        3,170.56                            

Other current assets 10 1,286.08                        1,065.20                            
26,683.94                      21,595.79                          

Total assets 63,944.69                      55,250.71                          

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital 14 45,584.89                      45,584.89                          
Other equity 15 (36,970.84)                    (43,176.13)                        

Total Equity 8,614.05                       2,408.76                           

Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Long term Borrowings 16 23,771.87                      26,454.89                          
Lease Liabilities 17 3,754.17                        3,236.88                            
Other financial liabilities 20 4,335.88                        4,216.99                            
Provisions 18 2,173.13                        2,042.51                            

34,035.05                      35,951.27                          
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

 Short-term Borrowings 16 4,789.20                        4,383.68                            
Lease Liabilities 17 490.84                           405.88                               
 Trade payables 19

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 30.40                             108.17                               

7,916.87                        7,766.61                            
Other financial liabilities 20 2,081.64                        1,432.31                            

Provisions 18 2,077.19                        1,249.97                            
Other current liabilities 21 3,909.45                        1,544.06                            

21,295.59                      16,890.68                          
Total equity and liabilities 63,944.69                      55,250.71                          

Corporate information and Material accounting policies 1 & 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

In terms of our report attached

For K.S. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 003109S

Hitesh Kumar P PS Nair Pradeep Panicker
Partner Director  Director 
Membership No: 233734 DIN: 00063118 DIN: 02730418

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 26, 2024 Date: April 26, 2024

Kandi Sreenivasulu Rakhal Panigrahi
Chief Financial Officer                    Company Secretary

M.No. ACS 39622

Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad
Date : April 26, 2024 Date : April 26, 2024 Date : April 26, 2024

GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises
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GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
For the year ended

March 31, 2024
For the year ended

March 31, 2023
I. Revenue

Revenue from operations 22 46,670.34                        38,239.95                        
Other income 23 1,704.99                          971.46                             
Total Income 48,375.33                        39,211.41                        

II. Expenses
Operations and maintenance expenses 227.15                             1,740.40                          
Cost of stores and spares consumed 24 6,400.18                          7,619.22                          
Employee benefits expense 25 13,097.08                        11,604.48                        
Other expenses 28 15,764.77                        11,097.06                        
Total Expenses 35,489.18                        32,061.16                        

III.
Earnings before Interest , Tax, Depreciation and 
Amortization (EBITDA) (I-II)

12,886.15                        7,150.25                         

Finance costs 26 3,601.32                          3,572.80                          
Depreciation and amortization expenses 27 2,956.47                          2,555.09                          

IV. Profit/(Loss) before Tax 6,328.36                          1,022.36                          

V. Tax expenses
Current tax -                                      -                                      
Deferred tax -                                      -                                      

-                                      -                                      

VI. Profit for the year (IV-V) 6,328.36                          1,022.36                         

VII. Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
Re-measurement Gain/(losses) on defined benefit plan 29 (123.07)                           (35.47)                             
Deferred tax impact on Re-measurement gains/(losses) 
on defined benefit plan

-                                      -                                      

Total other comprehensive Income (123.07)                           (35.47)                             

VIII. Total comprehensive income for the year (VI + VII) 6,205.29                          986.89                            
Earnings per equity share of par value of Rs.10 each :
Basic and Diluted EPS (Rs. Per share) 30 1.39                                 0.18                                
Corporate information and Material accounting policies 1 & 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For K.S. Rao & Co., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No: 003109S

PS Nair Pradeep Panicker
Director Director
DIN: 00063118 DIN: 02730418

Hitesh Kumar P
Partner Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad
Membership No: 233734 Date: April 26, 2024 Date: April 26, 2024

Kandi Sreenivasulu Rakhal Panigrahi
Chief Financial Officer                    Company Secretary

M.No. ACS 39622

Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad
Date : April 26, 2024 Date : April 26, 2024 Date : April 26, 2024
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GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars
 For the year ended

March 31, 2024 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 

6,328.36                              1,022.36                            

2,956.47                              2,555.09                            
(243.11)                                -                                     

(25.21)                                  (130.70)                              
(19.82)                                  (213.34)                              
215.97                                 166.14                               

Provision for Inventory Writeoff 206.94                                 -                                     
(207.09)                                (1.93)                                  

41.38                                   49.56                                 
(736.10)                                (180.81)                              

(66.13)                                  (9.32)                                  
78.05                                   23.75                                 

1.24                                     (1.00)                                  
3,601.32                              3,572.80                            

12,132.27                            6,852.61                            

424.28                                 (468.32)                              
-                                       -                                     

2,284.28                              (898.52)                              
691.16                                 567.36                               

(3,176.93)                             41.31                                 
(587.16)                                666.19                               

1,240.46                              271.27                               
13,008.36                            7,031.90                            

382.75                                 471.85                               
13,391.11                            7,503.75                            

(400.00)                                212.89                               
(4,838.16)                             (2,820.42)                           

Unsecured Loan given to GGIAL -                                       2,000.00                            
(5,149.81)                             (3,099.95)                           

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 84.97                                   7.02                                   
2,700.00                              100.00                               

26.87                                   0.57                                   
194.94                                 (0.05)                                  

Redemption/maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) (306.09)                                -                                     

(7,687.27)                             (3,599.94)                           

(155.07)                                1,627.87                            
(2,139.40)                             (2,430.24)                           

-                                       -                                     
(974.37)                                (902.81)                              

(2,554.60)                             (2,617.79)                           

(5,823.44)                             (4,322.97)                           

(119.60)                                (419.15)                              
15.68                                   (43.79)                                

996.89                                 1,459.83                            
892.97                                 996.89                               

6.04                                     2.13                                   
160.15                                 150.07                               

1.39                                     1.01                                   
725.39                                 843.68                               

-                                       -                                     

Total cash and cash equivalents 892.97                                 996.89                               

With banks - on escrow accounts
Exchange earners foreign currency account
Deposits with maturity for less than 3 months

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
With banks - on current accounts

Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Effect of exchange differences on cash & cash equivalents held in foreign currency

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Repayment of  long-term borrowings - Non-Convertible Debentures
Payment of Lease liability

Interest received

Interest paid

Proceeds from Borrowings
Repayment  of Borrowings

Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)

Net cash flow (used in)/from investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Purchase of Current Investments

Redemption of Current Investments

Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment including CWIP and capital advances

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets and other assets
Cash from operations

Direct taxes paid

(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables
(Decrease) / Increase in other payables
(Decrease) / Increase in other financial liabilities and other liabilities
(Decrease) / Increase in provisions
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables

Provision for doubtful debts
Fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL

Operating Profit before working capital changes
Changes in working capital

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 

Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization expense

Finance costs 

Liabilities no longer required,written back 
Unrealized foreign exchange gain
Interest income 
Inventory write off

Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment (net)
Property, plant and equipment (net) write off
Other notional revenue (Reversal of lease)

Income from mutual funds



GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2024:

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 
2023

Proceeds Repayment
Fair value change/other 

adjustments
As at 

March 31, 2024

Borrowings  30,838.57 -155.07             (2,139.40)       16.97                                   28,561.07
Lease liabilities    3,642.75 751.22              (542.70)          393.74                                 4,245.01
Total 34,481.32 596.15               (2,682.10) 410.71 32,806.08                           
# Short term borrowings (net) represents net of amounts received and payments made.

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 
2022

Proceeds / 
Imapct of Ind 

AS 116
Repayment

Fair value change/other 
adjustments

As at 
March 31, 2023

Borrowings  31,624.20 1,627.87            (2,430.24)       16.74                                   30,838.57
Lease liabilities    3,799.23 -                    (507.97)          351.49                                 3,642.75
Total 35,423.43 1,627.87            (2,938.21)       368.23 34,481.32                           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For K.S. Rao & Co., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No: 003109S

Hitesh Kumar P PS Nair Pradeep Panicker
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 233734 DIN: 00063118 DIN: 02730418

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 26, 2024 Date: April 26, 2024

Kandi Sreenivasulu Rakhal Panigrahi
Chief Financial Officer                    Company Secretary

M.No. ACS 39622

Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad
Date : April 26, 2024 Date : April 26, 2024 Date : April 26, 2024
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GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

A. Share Capital:
No. of shares Rs. in lakhs

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at April 01, 2022 45,58,12,200                             45,581.22                               
Issue of shares during the year 36,735                                       3.67                                        
As at March 31, 2023 45,58,48,935                             45,584.89                               
As at April 01, 2023 45,58,48,935                             45,584.89                               
Issue of shares during the year -                                                -                                             
As at March 31, 2024 45,58,48,935                             45,584.89                               

Preference Share Capital
11.97% compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares ('CCCPS') Series A 
of Rs.10,000 each fully paid up

No. of shares Rs. in lakhs

As at April 01, 2022 18,000                                       1,800.00                                 
Issue of shares during the year -                                             -                                          
Conversion into Equity shares during the year 18,000                                       1,800.00                                 
As at March 31, 2023 -                                             -                                          
As at April 01, 2023
Issue of shares during the year
As at March 31, 2024 -                                             -                                          

11.97% compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares ('CCCPS') Series B 
of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

No. of shares Rs. in lakhs

As at April 01, 2022 18,735                                       1.87                                        
Issue of shares during the year -                                             -                                          
Conversion of Equity during the year 18,735                                       1.87                                        
As at March 31, 2023 -                                             -                                          
As at April 01, 2023
Issue of shares during the year
As at March 31, 2024 -                                             -                                          

Total Share Capital as at March 31, 2023 45,584.89                               
Total Share Capital as at March 31, 2024 45,584.89                               

B.  Other Equity
As at

 March 31, 2024
As at

 March 31, 2023

(i) Equity component of related party loan
Opening Balance                                          51.17 51.17                                      
Less: Adjustments during the year/period                                                -                                               -   
Closing Balance                                          51.17                                       51.17 

(ii) Retained earnings
Opening Balance (43,936.34)                                (44,923.23)                             
Add: Profit for the year 6,328.36                                    1,022.36                                 
Remeasurement (losses) on the defined benefit plans (123.07)                                     (35.47)                                    
Closing Balance (37,731.05)                                (43,936.34)                             

(iii) Amalgamation Adjustment Deficit Account
Opening balance (1,089.16)                                  (1,089.16)                               
Less: Adjustment duing the year/period -                                                -                                             
Closing balance (1,089.16)                                  (1,089.16)                               

(iv) Security Premium
Opening Balance 1,798.20                                    -                                             
Issued during the year -                                                
Closing Balance 1,798.20                                    -                                             

Total Other Equity (36,970.84)                                (44,974.33)                             
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For K.S. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 003109S

PS Nair Pradeep Panicker
Hitesh Kumar P Director Director
Partner DIN: 00063118 DIN: 02730418
Membership No: 233734

Place: Bengaluru Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 26, 2024 Date: April 26, 2024

Kandi Sreenivasulu Rakhal Panigrahi
Chief Financial Officer                    Company Secretary

M.No. ACS 39622

Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad
Date : April 26, 2024 Date : April 26, 2024 Date : April 26, 2024

GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited 
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GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited  
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

  (All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

 
 

 

  
1. Corporate information 

 
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited (“the Company”) is a 100% subsidiary of GMR 
Hyderabad International Airport Limited. The Company was incorporated on February 29, 2008 to carry out 
the business of Cargo handling at Rajiv Gandhi International Airport and Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul 
facility (MRO) of Aircrafts and allied services and to promote, plan, design, develop, operate, market, alter 
the MRO facility and all other related allied and ancillary activities but limited to maintenance of hangars 
and related workshops. 
 
The Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 are approved by the company’s Board 
of Directors in their meeting held on April 26, 2024. 
 

2.       Material Accounting Policies 
  

2.1   Basis of preparation and presentation: 
 
The Standalone financial statements are comprising Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024; Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash flow statement for the year then ended, and other explanatory 
information. (Collectively referred to as “standalone financial statements”)  
 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, 
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company. 
 
(a) Statement of Compliance: 
 

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”), notified under 
the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter and other relevant provision of the Act. 
 
(b) Basis of measurement: 
 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments 
which are measured at fair values at the end of reporting period. (As explained in accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments). 

 

2.2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies 
 

a) Use of estimates 
 

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these 
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on 
parameters available when the Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are 
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 
 

b) Investment in Subsidiary 
 

The Company has accounted for its investment in subsidiary at cost. 
 
 



GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited  
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

  (All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

 
 

 

c) Current versus non-current classification 
 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, 
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. 
 

All other assets are classified as non-current.  
 

A liability is current when: 
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, 
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or  
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
  

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
 

d) Foreign currencies  
 

Functional and presentation currency 
 

The Financial Statements are presented in INR (Indian rupees), which is the functional currency of the 
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. 

 

Transactions and balances 
 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates at the date of 
transaction. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates 
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.  
 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency 
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of 
monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.  
 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. The date of transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (part of it) is the 
date on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from 
the payment or receipt of advance consideration. 
 

e) Fair value measurement 
 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
   
-  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
 

  -  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
 

 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use  
 



GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited  
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

  (All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

 
 

 

when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes in to account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing 
the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
 

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 
 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. 
 
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial 
assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 

 
f) Revenue recognition 
 

Revenue from Services: 
 

MRO Business: 
 

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects 
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue 
is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances, taxes or duties collected on 
behalf of the government. An entity shall recognize revenue when the entity satisfies a performance 
obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred 
when the customer obtains control of that asset. 

 
Revenue relating to fixed price contracts is recognized based on percentage of completion method (POC 
method). 
 
Unearned revenue is recognized when there are billings in excess of revenues. 

 
Cargo Business Services: 
 

Revenue is recognized to depict rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. Revenue is reduced 
for estimated rebates and other similar allowances, taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. An 
entity shall recognize revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised 
service to a customer. 
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The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized. 
 
Income from services: 
    

In case of cargo handling revenue, revenue from outbound cargo is recognised at the time of acceptance of 
cargo with respect to non-airline customers and at the time of departure of aircraft with respect to airline 
customers and revenue from inbound cargo is recognised at the time of arrival of aircraft in case of airline 
customers and at the point of delivery of cargo in case of non- airline customers. Demurrage on delayed 
receipts from customers is recognised on delivery of cargo.  
 
The Company collects Goods and Services Tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an 
economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.    
"Income from the concession arrangements earned under the intangible asset model consists of : 

 

(i) fair value of contract revenue, which is deemed to be fair value of consideration transferred to acquire the 
asset; and  
 

(ii) payments actually received from the users."  
    
Revenues and cost of improvements to concession assets:  

  
In conformity with appendix D of Ind AS 115, the Company recognizes revenues and the associated costs of 
improvements to concession assets which it is obligated to perform at the airports as established by the 
concession agreement. Revenues represent the value of the exchange between the Company and the 
government with respect to the improvements, given that the Company constructs or provides 
improvements to the airports as obligated under the concession agreement and in exchange, the government 
grants the Company the right to obtain benefits for services provided using those assets. The Company has 
determined that its obligations as per the concession agreement should be considered to be a revenue earning 
activity as all expenditures incurred to fulfill the concession agreement are included in the maximum tariff it 
charges its customers and therefore it recognizes the revenue and expense in profit and loss when the 
expenditures are performed.   
The cost for such additions and improvements to concession assets is based on actual costs incurred by the 
Company in the execution of the additions or improvements, considering the requirements in the concession 
agreement. The amount of revenues for these services is equal to the amount of costs incurred, as Company 
do not obtain any profit margin for these construction services. The amounts paid are set at market value.
  
Other operating revenue: 
 

Other operating revenue includes income from ancillary revenue generating activities and is recognized 
based on the terms agreed with the customers when the services are rendered."  
 
Interest income: 
 

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts 
the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a 
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows 
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call 
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.  
 
For others, Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking in to account the amount 
outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of 
profit and loss. 
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Interest for delayed payments from customers is accounted only when it is unconditionally accepted by the 
customers and on receipt basis. 

 
Dividend income : 
 

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally 
when shareholders approve the dividend. 

 
g) Taxes : 

 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive 
income. 
 

Current income tax: 
 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates 
taxable income. 
 

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss 
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken 
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation 
and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

 
Deferred tax: 
 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial information and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differences arise from the initial recognition 
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable 
profit nor the accounting profit. 
 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of 
the asset to be recovered. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
assets to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority. 
 

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, 
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax 
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the Balance sheet when the asset can be 
measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will be 
realized. 
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h) Property, plant and equipment 

 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as 
a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and 
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
 

Particulars 
Useful Life 

(years) 
Plant and equipment 5 - 15 

Office equipment 5 
Computer equipment and IT systems 3 -  6 
Furniture and fixtures 10 

Vehicles  8 
 
The Company, based on assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain 
items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which coincide with the useful life prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are 
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The identified 
components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated 
over the life of the principal asset. Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the 
year of acquisition.  
 
However, in case of tools and equipment, where such individual items constitute more than 10% of the total 
cost of Tools and equipment, normal useful lives have been considered. 
 
The Company depreciates the building on leasehold land on straight line basis over the period of lease, i.e.27 
years. For certain categories of buildings, accelerated depreciation has been provided over the life of                 
10-27 years. 

 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.  
 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 

Further, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the item 
of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Machinery spares 
which are specific to a particular item of fixed asset and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalized 
as fixed assets. 
 

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of Property, plant and equipment and, i.e., when 
the company intends to use these during more than a period of 12 months. 
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i) Intangible assets 

 

Service concession arrangements:    
 
The Company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) used to provide a 
public service and operates and maintains that infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of 
time. These arrangements may include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession 
arrangement for its entire useful life.    
 
Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115 – Service Concession Arrangements, these arrangements are accounted for 
based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the Company 
receives a right (i.e. a concessionaire) to charge users of the public service. The financial model is used when 
the Company has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets from or at the 
direction of the grantor for the construction service. When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only 
part of the service, the two models are combined to account separately for each component. If the Company 
performs more than one service (i.e. construction, upgrade services and operation services) under a single 
contract or arrangement, consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair 
values of the service delivered, when the amount are separately identifiable.    
 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL) had entered into a Concession Agreement with 
Government of India, which gives GHIAL an exclusive right to design, finance, build, operate and maintain 
a world class, state of the art international airport at Shamshabad, Hyderabad, Telangana, India. The 
concession arrangement is a service concession arrangement under appendix D to Ind AS 115. Through the 
concession agreement, GHIAL has granted further concession to the Company along with sub-leasing of the 
part of cargo infrastructure facility to the Company and since the Company has a right to charge the users 
for the services and therefore, the same has been classified under Intangible assets model.  
  
The intangible asset is amortized over the shorter of the estimated period of future economic benefits which 
the intangible assets are expected to generate or the concession period, from the date they are available for 
use.    

An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its future use or disposal.    
 
Other Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost of 
an intangible asset comprises of purchase price and attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for 
its intended use. 

 
Intangible Assets are amortized on a straight – line basis over their useful life not exceeding six years. An 
intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognized. 
 

j) Borrowing cost 
 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of 
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist 
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost 
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 
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k) Leases 
 

Effective April 01, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases”. In respect of the transition to Ind 
AS 116 please refer Note 34. 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for 
a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
 
Where the Company is lessee 
 
The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease 
term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise 
of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The 
right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated 
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right- of-use asset is 
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful 
life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication 
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses 
incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company may adopt the 
incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole. The lease payments shall include 
fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option 
where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating 
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is 
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing 
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any 
reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 
 
The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further 
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount of the 
re-measurement in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

 
Where the company is lessor 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer 
from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables 
at the Company net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to 
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. 
 
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognized as income 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

l) Inventories 
 
Stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, stores and spares held for 
use in providing the service not written down below cost if services are expected to be provided at or above 
the cost. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Net realisable value is estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
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m) Impairment of non-financial assets 

 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates 
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or, cash-generating 
unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets 
or groups of assets. 
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken in to account. 
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are 
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available 
fair value indicators. 
 

Impairment losses, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. An assessment is made at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no 
longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s 
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable 
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior periods/ years. Such reversal is recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 
 

n) Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments 
 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company 
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the 
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The 
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 
 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non–occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there 
is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not 
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.  
 

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 
• A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will not 
be required to settle the obligation 
• A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible 
• A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote 
 

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of 
assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting 
date. 
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o) Retirement and other Employee Benefits 

 
(i) Defined contribution plans 

 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no 
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and employee state insurance. The 
Company recognizes contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense, when an employee 
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance 
sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a 
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the 
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset 
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

 

Retirement benefit in the form of Superannuation Fund and Employees State Insurance are defined 
contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the period 
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the 
contribution payable to the respective funds. 

 

(ii) Defined benefit plans 
 

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund administered under a scheme of the Life Insurance 
Corporation of India, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, 
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, 
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling ( if applicable) and the 
return on plan assets (excluding net interest) , is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge 
or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and is not reclassified 
to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net 
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit 
liability or asset."  

 
Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows: 

 

• service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments 
and settlements); 
• net interest expense or income; and 
• remeasurement" 

 

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 
Employee benefits expenses. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.  
The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in 
the Company’s defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present 
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future 
contributions to the plans. 
 

(iii) Compensated absences 
 

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term 
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount 
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

 

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for 
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial 
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. However, the 
Company presents the entire provision towards accumulated leave as a current liability in the balance 
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sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting 
date based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. 

  
p) Financial Instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 
 
Financial assets 
 
Initial recognition and measurement: 
 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the 
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 
Subsequent measurement: 
 

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the Company’s business model for 
which it is held and on the substance of the contractual terms/arrangements. Management determines the 
classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. 
 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified into 
categories as explained below: 
 - Debt instruments at amortized cost 
 - Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
 - Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

            - Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
 

Debt instruments at amortized cost: 
 

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking in to account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses 
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and 
other receivables. 

 
Debt instrument at FVTOCI: 
 
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 
 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and 

 

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 
 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).  
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However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange 
gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned 
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 
 
Debt instrument at FVTPL: 
 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL 

 
In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost 
or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included 
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss. 
 
 
Equity Investments: 
 
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held 
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which       Ind 
AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable. 
 
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI 
to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured 
at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Derecognition: 
 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 
is primarily de recognized (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when: 

 

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
 

b. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the 
company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an associated liability. The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations 
that the company has retained. 
 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the 
company could be required to repay. 
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Impairment of financial assets: 

 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance  

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI. 
c. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116 
d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from 

transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 
e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL 
f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL 
 
The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on; 

- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 
- All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 
 
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from 
its initial recognition. 
 
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines 
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk 
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit 
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the 
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, 
then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default 
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

 
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with 
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at 
the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider: 

 
a. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar 

options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected 
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the 
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument 

 
b. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the 

contractual terms. 
 
As a practical expedient, the Company evaluates individual balances to determine impairment loss 
allowance on its trade receivables. The evaluation is based on its historically observed default rates over 
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting 
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 
analyzed.  

 
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ 
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ 
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in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is 
described below: 

 

 Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is 
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance 
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the 
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

 
For assessing credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of 
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

 
 

Financial liabilities 
 

Initial recognition and measurement: 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective 
hedge, as appropriate. 
 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including cash 
credit, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 

 
Subsequent measurement: 

 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.  
 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in 
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that 
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated 
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging 
instruments.  
 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss. 
 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as 
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.  
 
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are 
recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at 
fair value through profit and loss. 
 
Loans and borrowings: 
 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization 
process.  
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Amortized cost is calculated by taking in to account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. 
 

 
Financial guarantee contracts 
 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made 
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in 
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.  

 

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the 
higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the 
amount recognized less cumulative amortization. 
 

Derecognition 
 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
 

q) Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
with an original maturity of or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the 
purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as 
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s 
cash management. 

 
r) Earnings per share 

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.  
 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax, adjusted for effects of dilutive 
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS 
and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive. Dilutive potential equity shares are 
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity 
shares are determined independently for each period presented. 
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3 Property, Plant & Equipment

Books and 
periodicals

Buildings on 
leasehold land

Plant and 
equipment

Office equipment
Computer equipment 

and IT systems
Furniture and 

fixtures
Vehicles Total 

Cost or deemed cost 
As at April 01, 2022 12,024.74                      11,891.20                   417.05                      484.51                          391.63                          60.13                             25,269.25                         
Additions 22.31                             524.83                        25.78                        101.37                          6.68                              9.00                               689.96                               
Disposals -                                     (52.03)                         -                                -                                   -                                    (0.95)                              (52.97)                               
As at March 31, 2023 -                              12,047.05                      12,364.01                   442.83                      585.88                          398.31                          68.18                             25,906.24                         
Additions 13.27                          2,263.59                        4,666.18                     86.24                        232.39                          168.83                          10.19                             7,440.68                            
Disposals -                                  -                                     (219.83)                       (14.80)                       (6.86)                            (2.25)                             (4.08)                              -247.82                              
As at March 31, 2024 13.27                          14,310.64                      16,810.36                   514.28                      811.40                          564.89                          74.29                             33,099.10                         

Accumulatd Depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 4,632.57                        4,922.41                     287.55                      227.99                          246.06                          23.00                             10,339.60                         
Depreciation charge for the year 510.39                            939.32                        48.88                        110.97                          23.21                            6.33                               1,639.11                            
Disposals -                                  (33.91)                         -                            -                                -                                 (0.36)                              (34.27)                              
As at March 31, 2023 5,142.96                        5,827.82                     336.43                      338.96                          269.27                          28.97                             11,944.44                         
Depreciation charge for the year 8.64                             546.01                            1,095.10                     54.70                        124.59                          34.31                            8.10                               1,871.44                            
Disposals -                               -                                  (124.64)                      (10.94)                      (3.96)                            (6.17)                            (1.28)                             (146.99)                            
Other Adjsutments -                               5.95                                (4.36)                          -                            (3.92)                            (3.39)                            2.20                                (3.52)                                
As at March 31, 2024 8.64                            5,694.92                        6,793.92                     380.19                      455.66                          294.02                          37.98                             13,665.37                         

Net Block
As at March 31, 2023 -                                  6,904.09                        6,536.19                     106.40                      246.92                          129.04                          39.21                             13,961.80                         
As at March 31, 2024 4.63                            8,615.72                        10,016.44                   134.09                      355.74                          270.87                          36.31                             19,433.73                         

3A Capital Work in Progress
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Capital expenditure incurred on Proprty Plant and Equipment                             630.76                             2,404.12 

630.76                            2,404.12

# Building is constructed on lease hold land taken from GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited ("GHASL") who has obtained the same from GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited ("GHIAL") (holding company).
GHIAL has obtained such land under the land lease agreement with the Government of Telangana. 
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4 Right of use Assets Total
Land Buildings

As at April 01, 2022 3,497.48                       -                                     3,497.49                           
Additions -                                     -                                        
Adjustments -                                    -                                     -                                        
As at March 31, 2023 3,497.48                       -                                     3,497.49                           
Additions 770.73                          -                                     770.73                              
Adjustments -                                    -                                     -                                        
As at March 31, 2024 4,268.21                       -                                     4,268.22                           

Accumulated Amortization 
As at April 01, 2022 733.41                          0.00                                733.42                              
Charge for the year 239.04                          -                                     239.04                               
Adjustments -                                    -                                     -                                        
As at March 31, 2023 972.45                          0.00                                972.46                              
Charge for the year 293.66                          -                                     293.66                               
Adjustments -                                    -                                     -                                        
As at March 31, 2024 1,266.11                       0.00                                1,266.12                           

Net Block
As at March 31, 2023 2,525.03                       -                                     2,525.03                            
As at March 31, 2024 3,002.10                       -                                     3,002.10                           

5 Other Intangible Assets

Right to Operate - 
Cargo facility

Computer Software
Technical 

Know-how
 Total  

Cost or deemed cost 
As at April 01, 2022 10,858.78                     448.87                          898.29                           12,205.94                         
Additions 1,748.15                       19.21                            -                                     1,767.35                           
Disposals (158.65)                        -                                    -                                     (158.65)                             
As at March 31, 2023 12,448.28                     468.08                          898.29                           13,814.64                         
Additions 227.15                          280.15                          -                                     507.30                              
Disposals (7.14)                            -                                    -                                     (7.14)                                 
As at March 31, 2024 12,668.29                     748.22                          898.29                           14,314.80                         

Accumulated Amortization 
As at April 01, 2022 2,729.72                       363.42                          898.29                           3,991.43                           
Charge for the year 648.49                          28.46                            -                                     676.95                              
Disposals (152.77)                        -                                    -                                     (152.77)                             
As at March 31, 2023 3,225.44                       391.88                          898.29                           4,515.61                           
Charge for the year 746.13                          45.24                            -                                     791.37                              
Disposals (4.79)                            -                                    -                                     (4.79)                                 
As at March 31, 2024 3,966.78                       437.12                          898.29                           5,302.19                           

Net Block
As at March 31, 2023 9,222.84                       76.20                            -                                     9,299.03                           
As at March 31, 2024 8,701.51                       311.11                          -                                     9,012.61                           

6 Intangible Assets under development
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Capital expenditure incurred on intangible assets                             193.55                                165.79 

193.55                            165.79

Right-of-use assets
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7(a)  Investments

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

Investment equity instruments (fully paid-up)
Unquoted investment in subsidiaries (at Cost)
100,000 (March 31, 2022: 100,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 
fully paid up in GMR Aero Technic Limited                                  10.00 10.00                                      -                                      -   
30060 units (March 31, 2023: 30060) of face value of Rs.1000 
each HDFC Liquid Fund - Regular plan - Growth                           1,068.08                         1,000.52 
79,910 units (March 31, 2023: 75,847 units) of Rs.1000 each of 
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Growth Regular Plan                           1,034.88                            919.65 
86,931 units (March 31, 2023: 86,931 units) of face value of 
Rs.1000 each ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund Direct Plan 
Growth                           1,121.87                         1,050.54 
76,796 units (March 31, 2023: 40,079) of face value of Rs.1000 
each Axis Overnight Fund Direct Growth                              972.67                            475.15 
76,937 units (March 31, 2023: 12,593 units) of face value of Rs.10 
each Sundaram Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth                              978.83                            149.99 
79,319 units (March 31, 2023: 39,504 units) of face value of 
Rs.1000 each Kotak Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth                           1,013.11                            472.38 
68,089 units (March 31, 2023: 39,367) of face value of Rs.1000 
each Tata Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth                              859.79                            465.56 
1,265 units (March 31, 2023: 32,036 units) of face value of 
Rs.1000 each UTI Overnight Fund-Direct Growth Plan                                41.45                            983.07 
70,655 units (March 31, 2023: Nil) of face value of Rs.1000 each 
HSBC Overnight Fund Direct Growth                              885.25 
8,427 units (March 31, 2023: Nil) of face value of Rs.1000 each 
HSBC Liquid Fund Direct Growth                              202.76 
19,652 units (March 31, 2023: Nil) of face value of Rs.1000 each 
Bandhan Mutual Fund Direct Growth                              250.95 
Innovex capital fund 
4,00,000 units of Rs. 100 each (March 31, 2023 : Nil)                                873.88 

Total 883.88                               10.00                       8,429.64                          5,516.86                        

7(b) Other Financial Assets
Security deposits

Unsecured,considered good, to related parties 84.36                                 69.42                       -                                   -                                 
Unsecured,considered good, to others 127.48                               78.65                       -                                   -                                 
Margin money deposits held with bank -                                     4.50                         

Interest accrued on fixed deposits -                                     -                           18.11                               8.40                               
Total (A) 211.85                               152.57                     18.11                               8.40                               

Others
Unbilled revenue -                                     -                           1,757.62                          3,133.02                        
Other receivables -                                     -                           32.77 29.13                             
Total (B) -                                     -                           1,790.38                          3,162.16                        
Total (A+B) 211.85                               152.57                     1,808.49                          3,170.56                        

8. Deferred tax Assets (net)
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liability (DTL) relating to 

Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for the year (1,111.09)                        (1,096.94)                      
Impact of fair value adjustments on Investments in Financial Instruments (236.33)                           (52.75)                           
Impact of Other borrowing cost to the extent not amortised (19.66)                             (23.94)                           

(1,367.08)                        (1,173.63)                      

Deferred tax assets (DTA) relating to

Carry forward tax losses/unabsorbed depreciation -                                  -                                    
Impact of additional expenditure on account of Ind AS 116 614.56                             477.19                           
Impact of notional interest on deposits 33.32                               24.61                             
Impact of temporary differences due to disallowances of Gratuity and Leave encashment 259.36                             161.73                           
Impact of temporary differences due to provision for planned maintenance created under SCA 442.26                             487.48                           
Other Assets 17.59                               22.62                             

1,367.08                          1,173.63                        
Deferred tax (net)                                                                                                                                                                                                                               (A+B) 0.00                                 -                                 

Non Current Current

 (A)

 (B)
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9. Tax Assets:

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

Advance income-tax (net of provisions) 3,421.07                            3,803.82                  -                                   -                                 
3,421.07                            3,803.82                  -                                   -                                 

10. Other Assets:

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 65.88                                 938.06                     
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 272.55                               272.55                     404.28                             363.72                           
Total (A) 338.43                               1,210.61                  404.28                             363.72                           

Other loans and advances
Prepaid expenses 20.28                                 9.66                         372.21                             270.52                           
Advance Concession fee -                                     -                           -                                   -                                 
Balances with statutory/ government authorities 112.47                               112.47                     509.59                             430.94                           
Total (B) 132.75                               122.14                     881.81                             701.47                           

Total (A+B) 471.20                               1,332.76                  1,286.08                          1,065.20                        

11. Inventories
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Stores and spares (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)* 6,040.78                          5,876.52                        

6,040.78                          5,876.52                        
*includes material in transit of Rs. 7 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 45.08 lakhs)

12. Trade Receivables
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good

 - Considered good- Secured -                                   -                                 
 - Considered good-Un Secured 7,911.71                          4,766.64                        

64.31                               91.69                             
Less: Provisions for Expected Credit Loss - credit impaired (64.31)                             (91.69)                           

Total (Refer Note 49) 7,911.70                          4,766.64                        

13(a)  Cash and cash equivalents
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 6.04 2.13                               
Balance with banks

- on current accounts 160.15                             150.07                           
- exchange earner's foreign currency account 725.39                             843.68                           
- on escrow accounts 1.39                                 1.01                               

Total 892.97                             996.89                           

13(b)  Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent 
Fixed deposits held as Margin money* 313.16                             7.07                               

   Deposits with maturity for more than three months but less than 12 months 1.11                                 196.05                           
314.27                             203.12                           

*Out of the above, Fixed deposit of Rs. 6.07 lakhs is in the name of Demerged Company (GATL).

Non Current Current

 - Credit impaired

Non Current Current
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14 Equity Share Capital

In numbers Amount 
Authorised share capital:
As at April 01, 2022 68,15,68,450                   70,000                           
Increase during the year -                                   -                                 
As at March 31, 2023 68,15,68,450                   70,000                           
Increase during the year -                                   -                                 
As at March 31, 2024 68,15,68,450                   70,000                           

Issued, subscribed and fully paid share capital
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023

45,584.89                        45,584.89                      

-                                   -                                 

-                                   -                                 

45,584.89                        45,584.89                      
a. Reconciliaton of number of shares and amount outstanding at end of the year
Equity Shares In numbers Amount 

As at April 01, 2022 45,58,12,200                   45,581.22                      
Issues of the shares during the year 36,735                             3.67                               
As at March 31, 2023 45,58,48,935                   45,584.89                      
Issues of the shares during the year -                                
As at March 31, 2024 45,58,48,935                   45,584.89                      

Preference shares - Series A In numbers Amount 
CCCPS of Rs.10,000/- each fully paid up

As at April 01, 2022 18,000                             1,800.00                        
Issues of the shares during the year -                                   -                                 
Conversion of Equity during the year 18,000                             1,800.00                        
As at March 31, 2023 -                                   -                                 
Issues of the shares during the year -                                   -                                 
Conversion of Equity during the year -                                   -                                 
As at March 31, 2024 -                                   -                                 

Preference shares - Series B
CCCPS of Rs.10/- each fully paid up In numbers Amount 
As at April 01, 2022 18,735                             1.87                               
Issues of the shares during the year -                                   -                                 
Conversion of Equity during the year 18,735                             1.87                               
As at March 31, 2023 -                                   -                                 
Issues of the shares during the year -                                   -                                 
Conversion of Equity during the year -                                   -                                 
As at March 31, 2024 -                                   -                                 

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

c. Terms/ rights attached to CCCPS

CCCPS (Series A) and CCCPS (Series B) carry cumulative dividend @ 11.97% and the Company declares the dividend in Indian Rupees. CCCPS (Series A) and CCCPS (Series B)
shall be compulsorily converted into equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at the rate of one equity share for each CCCPS (Series A) and CCCPS (Series B) share, as the case may be, after
the expiry of the concession year.

Other than the right to receive the dividends and preference rights on voluntary winding up, the CCCPS (Series A) and CCCPS (Series B) shall not have any rights including but
not limited to the voting rights. These preference shares shall rank pari-passu for the all the rights other than the par value of each share and the dividends thereon.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and
pays dividend in Indian Rupees. In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Company has issued 18,000 fully paid up CCCPS (Series A) of Rs. 10,000/- each fully paid up and 18,735 fully paid up CCCPS (Series B) of Rs. 10/- each. 

Equity Shares

Note: Includes effect of common control transaction, adjustments have been made in respect of consideration other in cash aggregating Rs. 10,993.09 lakhs to be discharged by
issue of Equity shares of Rs. 9,191.22 lakhs and Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (Series A & B) of Rs 1,801.87 lakhs.

455,848,935  (March 31, 2024: 455,812,200) fully paid equity shares  of Rs. 10 each 

Nill (March 31, 2024: 18,000) 11.97% compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares ('CCCPS') Series 
A of Rs.10,000 each fully paid up 
Nil (March 31, 2024: 18,735) 11.97% compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares ('CCCPS') Series B 
of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

The earlier 11.97% Series A (18,000) & Series B CCCPS (18,735) has been extinguished and converted into Equity shares face value of Rs. 10/- per share with effect from March
29,2023. Accordingly, GACAEL will allot 18,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each against 11.97% CCCPS Series A of face value of Rs. 10,000/- per share aggregating to Rs.1,80,000 and
18,735 equity shares of Rs.10 each against 11.97% CCCPS Series B of face value of Rs. 10/- per share aggregating to Rs.1,87,350 to GHIAL.
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c. Shares held by holding company 

No of shares held Amount No of shares held Amount 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited and its nominees

45,58,48,935 fully paid equity shares  of Rs. 10 each 45,58,48,935                     45,584.89                45,58,48,935                   45,584.89                      

18,000 11.97% compulsorily convertible cumulative preference 
shares ('CCCPS') Series A of Rs.10,000 each fully paid up -                                     -                           -                                   -                                 

18,735  11.97% compulsorily convertible cumulative preference 
shares ('CCCPS') Series B of Rs.10/- each fully paid up -                                     -                           -                                   -                                 

d.Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

No of shares held
% Holding in 

Class No of shares held % Holding in Class

45,58,48,935 fully paid equity shares  of Rs. 10 each 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited and its nominees 45,58,48,935                     100% 45,58,48,935                   100%

18,000 11.97% compulsorily convertible cumulative 
preference shares ('CCCPS') Series A of Rs.10,000 each fully 
paid up

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited and its nominees -                                     -                                   

18,735  11.97% compulsorily convertible cumulative 
preference shares ('CCCPS') Series B of Rs.10/- each fully 
paid up

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited and its nominees -                                     -                                   

15 Other equity
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
(i) Equity component of related party loan
Opening Balance 51.17                               51.17                             
Less: Adjustment duing the year -                                   -                                
Closing Balance 51.17                               51.17                             

(ii) Retained earnings
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Opening Balance (43,936.34)                      (44,923.23)                 
Add: (Loss)/Profit for the year 6,328.36                          1,022.36                     
Remeasurement (losses) on the defined benefit plans (123.07)                           (35.47)                        
Closing Balance (37,731.05)                      (43,936.34)                    

(iii) Amalgamation Adjustment Deficit Account
Opening balance (1,089.16)                        (1,089.16)                      
Add: Adjustment duing the year -                                      -                                    
Closing balance (1,089.16)                        (1,089.16)                      

(iv) Security Premium
Opening Balance 1,798.20                          -                                 
Issued during the year -                                   1,798.20                        
Closing Balance 1,798.20                          1,798.20                        

Total (36,970.84)                      (43,176.13)                    

The equity Paid up capital of the Company after conversion of CCCPS into equity would be increased from 45,58,12,200 equity shares of Rs.10 each aggregating to
Rs.455,81,22,000 to 45,58,48,935 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 455,84,89,350/-. The paid-up Preference Share Capital of Rs.18,01,87,350 will be reduced to Nil.
Accordingly, the total paid up capital of the Company would stand reduced from Rs.473,83,09,350 to Rs.455,84,89,350.

As per records of the Company including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above share
holding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

 As at March 31, 2023
Name of shareholder

Out of the equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company are as below:
 As at March 31, 2024

Name of shareholder
 As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023
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16 Borrowings

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

Loan from Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited -                                     -                           -0.00                                39.40                             
Loan from NIIF IFL - Term Loan 23,771.87                          26,454.89                2,700.00                          2,100.00                        
Overdraft facility from bank -                                     -                           2,089.20                          2,244.27                        

23,771.87                          26,454.89                4,789.20                          4,383.68                        

17. Lease Liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

Lease liabilities (Refer Note 34) 3,754.17                            3,236.88                  490.84                             405.88                           

3,754.17                            3,236.88                  490.84                             405.88                           

18 Provisions

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

Provision for employee benefits 
Provision for gratuity 411.15                               151.18                     -                                   -                                 
Leave Encashment -                                     -                           619.36                             491.44                           
Provision for Bonus 420.14                             250.03                           
Other provisions
Provision for replacement obligations 1,761.98                            1,891.33                  1,037.69                          508.50                           
Total 2,173.13                            2,042.51                  2,077.19                          1,249.97                        

19. Trade payables
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Trade Payables (Refer Note 50)
(i) Total Oustanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 30.40                               108.17                           
(ii) Total Oustanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 7916.87 7,766.61                        

7,947.28                          7,874.78                        
20. Other financial liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

Payables for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment -                                     -                           1,258.57                          752.39                           
Deposit from customers -                                     -                           10.51                               11.01                             
Retention money -                                     -                           170.43                             117.60                           
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings -                                     -                           15.56                               18.42                             
Security deposit received -                                     -                           243.68                             102.86                           
Payable for lease hold land rights 4,335.88                            4,216.99                  382.89                             430.03                           

4,335.88                            4,216.99                  2,081.64                          1,432.31                        

Non-Current Current

The Company has taken a loan from NIIF amouting to 30000.00 lakhs in the previous years at an interest rate of 8.30% (NIIF IFL 5 YR Benchmark Rate+BPS) which is repayable in 
40 Quarterly structured instalments starting from December 31, 2022. The loan is taken for refinancing of the investments made in the project and meeting  transcation 
expenditures.
The loan is secured by
(i) First pari-passu mortagage of leasehold rights of the land along with the building, structure etc. on the land by way of a memorandum by deposit of title deeds for following 
lease agreements.
(a) Land lease agreement with GHASL for the area admeasuring 14.81 acre.
(b) Land lease agreement with GHASL for the area admeasuring 2.72 acre for 147 School.
(c) Land lease agreement with GHASL for the area admeasuring 46483 square feet for inflatable hanger.

(ii) first ranking pari passu charge on (a) moveable assets including plant and machinery, spare, tools and accessories and all other movable assets (b) all the current assets, 
including bank accounts, cash flows and receivables by way of a deed of hypothecation (c) Project contracts.
(iii) Corporate Guarantee from GHIAL to guarantee the obligations of GACAEL under this facility.
(iv) Debt Service Reserve of 2 quarter of Debt Service Amount.

The Company has availed the overdraft facility up to 4,500 Lakhs from ICICI Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest of MCLR-3M/6M/1Y is 8.45%/8.60%/8.65% plus 
spread 0.35%, as per the terms of sanction letter.

During the FY 2021-22, the company has obtained loan from Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited amounting to Rs. 114.22 Lakhs repayable in 12 quarterly  instalments by 
February 2024.

During the FY 2021-22, the Company has obtained working capital loan from ICICI Bank carries interest of MCLR - 1 year is 7.9% plus spread NIL.

Long Term Short Term

Non-Current Current

CurrentNon-Current 

Current 



GMR Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Limited
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

21. Other current liabilities
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Advances from customers 445.95                             308.53                           
Payable to Employees 395.05                             316.12                           
Others

Stautory Liabilities 852.98                             488.35                           
Unearned revenue 2,215.47                          431.07                           

3,909.45                          1,544.06                        

Current
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22.Revenue from operations
 For the year ended

March 31, 2024 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
Income from MRO operations
   Revenue from MRO Services                           31,646.69                            27,420.71 
Income from cargo operations

Cargo operations                           14,189.10                              8,691.72 
Improvements to concession asset                                227.15                              1,740.40 

Other operating revenue
Document handling charges                                182.69                                   62.29 
Container handling charges                                214.81                                 154.49 
Rent                                143.80                                 133.48 
Parking income                                  38.68                                   36.85 
Sale of Inventory                                  27.41                                        -   

46,670.34                          38,239.95                           

India 46,537.10                         37,857.74                          
Outside India 133.24                              382.21                               
Total revenue from contracts with customers 46,670.34                         38,239.95                          

23. Other income
 For the year ended

March 31, 2024 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
Interest Income
Interest Income on

- Bank Deposits 19.82                                                                   14.98 
- Innovation fund 5.13                                                                          -   
-Inter Corporate Deposit and Loan -                                                                    198.36 
-Tax refund 32.62                                                                   60.10 

Finance income on financial assets held at amortised cost 12.30                                                                     9.55 
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 729.81                                                               172.19 
Profit on sale of Mutual Funds 207.09                                                                   1.93 
Duty credit Scrips -                                                                    101.10 
Gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 123.02                                                               236.72 
Liabilities no longer required, written back 243.11                                                                      -   
Other non operating income 96.37                                                                   19.89 
Profit On Sale Of Depreciable Assets 66.13                                                                     5.80 
Miscellaneous income 169.59                                                               150.85 

1,704.99                            971.46                                
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24. Cost of stores and spare consumed
For the year ended

March 31, 2024
For the year ended

March 31, 2023
Inventory at the beginning of the year 5,876.52                                                        6,708.85 
Add: Purchases 6,780.40                           7,100.91                            
Less: Inventory written off (215.97)                             (166.14)                              
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (6,040.78)                          (6,024.39)                           

6,400.18                           7,619.22                            

25.  Employee benefit expenses
For the year ended

March 31, 2024
For the year ended

March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 11,470.70                          10,228.60                          
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 31 (c )) 647.36                               554.31                               
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 31) 166.21                               136.12                               
Staff welfare expenses 812.82                               685.45                               
Total 13,097.08                          11,604.48                           

26.  Finance costs
For the year ended

March 31, 2024
For the year ended

March 31, 2023
Interest on 

Cash Credit facility and overdraft facility from bank 181.86                               96.23                                 
Loan from Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited 0.97                                   2.77                                   
NIIF IFL Term Loan 2,333.88                            2,441.25                            
Interest expense-ICICI FCNR Term Loan -                                    56.74                                 
Lease Liability 393.74                               351.49                               

   Financial liabilities & Replacement obligations 636.00                               586.78                               
   Bank and finance charges 54.87                                 37.54                                 

3,601.32                            3,572.80                             

27.  Depreciation and amortisation expenses
For the year ended

March 31, 2024
For the year ended

March 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 1,871.44                            1,639.11                            
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4) 791.37                               676.95                               
Depreciation on Right-of-use Assets (Refer note 5) 293.66                               239.04                               

2,956.47                            2,555.09                             
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28.  Other expenses
For the year ended

March 31, 2024
For the year ended

March 31, 2023
Rates and taxes 718.83                               548.01                               
Concession fee 2,726.16                            1,706.66                            
Technical fee 1,211.41                            762.32                               
Provision for planned maintenance under SCA 569.33                               598.58                               
Cargo handling charges 840.16                               741.02                               
Lease expenses 88.41                                 56.32                                 
Electricity and water charges (net of recoveries) 866.13                               774.71                               
Customs staff cost recovery 144.28                               130.90                               
Equipment hire charges 23.85                                 37.15                                 
Insurance 782.68                               624.52                               
Repairs and Maintenance 

- Plant and machinery 252.44                               223.55                               
- Buildings 96.36                                 58.31                                 
- IT Systems 361.68                               76.56                                 
- Others 617.98                               663.21                               

Sub-contracting expenses 377.63                               377.98                               
Advertising and sales promotion 72.51                                 70.50                                 
Travelling and conveyance 1,274.61                            981.66                               
Communication expenses 79.13                                 64.61                                 
Printing and stationery 69.15                                 65.00                                 
Security expenses 199.46                               180.63                               
House Keeping Charges 132.55                               79.15                                 
Business development expenses 377.96                               273.80                               
Membership and Subscriptions 91.50                                 80.76                                 
Corporate social responsibility expense 13.36                                 23.00                                 
Legal and professional fees 1,181.00                            591.74                               
Manpower Charges 720.81                               872.34                               
Recruitment Charges -                                    1.46                                   
Board meeting expenses 3.65                                   0.15                                   
Payment to auditors 28.63                                 21.72                                 
Provision for doubtful receivable 41.38                                 49.56                                 
Property, plant and equipment written off 78.05                                 23.75                                 
Charity and Donations (Refer Note below) 1,153.93                            -                                         
Inventory written off 215.97                               166.14                               
Provision for Inventory Writeoff 206.94                               -                                         
Misc. Exp-Insurance Claim Settled -                                    19.98                                 
Miscellaneous expenses 146.85                               151.29                               

15,764.77                          11,097.06                           

Payment to auditors 
For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Statutory audit fee 15.00                                 13.50                                  
Tax Audit fee 1.50                                   3.50                                    
Other services 9.57                                   1.91                                    
Reimbursement of expenses 2.56                                   2.81                                    

28.63                                 21.72                                  
29.  Other comprehensive income (OCI)
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plan (123.07)                             (35.47)                                
(123.07)                             (35.47)                                

Note: The Company has made a Donation to Prudent Electoral Trust for political purpose amounting to Rs. 1000.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2023
- Rs. NIL). 
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30. Earnings per Share (EPS) 

 
 The following reflects the income and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted EPS: 
 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Profit for the year 6,328.36 1,022.36 

Less : Preference dividend and tax thereon -  (210.36) 
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 6,328.36 812.00 

Weighted Average number of equity shares used for 
computing Earning Per Share (Basic and diluted) 

      455,848,935     45,58,13,106   

Earnings Per Share (Basic and diluted) (face value of 
Rs.10 each) 

 1.39    0.18 

 
31. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
                   

Particulars   March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Where the company covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 
the following shall be disclosed with regard to CSR activities:-     

(i) amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 13.36 22.95 

(ii) amount of expenditure incurred, 13.36 23.00 

(iii) shortfall at the end of the year, - - 

(iv) total of previous years shortfall, - - 

(v) reason for shortfall, - - 
(vi) nature of CSR activities, 
  

 

(vii) details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust 
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per 
relevant Accounting Standard, 

- - 

(viii) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the 
provision during the year shall be shown separately. 

- - 

 

 
32. Employee benefits plan 
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan and governed by Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee 
who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary for each 
completed year of service. 
 
Statement of profit and loss 
 
Net employee benefit expense (recognized in the employee cost) 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Current service cost (including past service cost)   147.02     132.50   
Interest cost on benefit obligation 11.96      3.62   
Other Adjustment 7.23  
Net benefit expense  166.21   136.12 

 

 



GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited  
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

  (All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

 
 

 

Balance sheet 
 
Details of provision for gratuity 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

Present value of defined benefit obligation   (1,163.75)   (924.58) 
Fair value of plan assets   752.56     773.40   
Plan liability   (411.15)   (151.18) 

 
a. Defined benefits plan: (MRO Division) 

 

The following tables summarize net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the amount 
recognised in the Balance sheet for the gratuity plan for MRO business: 
 
(i) Net employee benefit expense (recognized in the employee benefits expenses): 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Current service cost (including past service cost)   106.62     92.03   
Interest cost on benefit obligation   19.19   8.44 
Net benefit expense   125.81     100.47   

 
(ii) Net liability to be recognized in the balance sheet: 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Present value of defined benefit obligation   (864.62)   (660.70) 
Fair value of plan assets 383.61   413.61   
Plan liability   (481.01)   (247.09) 

 

 
   (iii) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation: 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Opening defined benefit obligation   660.70     507.67   
Interest cost   46.15   35.08 
Current service cost (including past service cost)   106.62     92.03   
Benefits paid   (56.96)   (27.25) 
Actuarial loss on obligation   108.11    53.17  
Closing defined benefit obligation   864.62     660.70   

 
   (iv) Changes in the fair value of plan assets: 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Opening fair value of plan assets   413.61     372.95   
Acquisition adjustment - (8.78) 
Expected return   26.96   26.64 
Contributions by employer -   40.43   
Actuarial gain/(loss) -   9.61 
Benefits paid   (56.96)   (27.24) 
Closing fair value of plan assets   383.61     413.61   

 
     The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows: 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Investments with insurer 100% 100% 

 

     The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below: 
 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Discount rate 7.00% 7.30% 
Salary escalation Rate 8.00% 8.00% 
Withdrawal Rate 5.00% 5.00% 
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     Disclosure related to indication of effect of the defined benefit plan on the entity’s future cash flows: 

 

     Expected Benefits payments for the year ending 
 

Year ending March 31, 2024 
Within 1 year                  67.26  
1 – 2 year                  70.94  
2 – 3 year                  56.59  
3 – 4 year                  52.50  
4 – 5 year                  58.91  
5 – 10 year                360.58  

 
The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligations are discount rate and 
expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes 
of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year, while holding all other assumptions constant. 

 
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
(a) Effect of 1% change in assumed discount rate   
      - 1% Increase (74.75) (59.72) 
      - 1% Decrease 87.21 70.01 
(b) Effect of 1% change in assumed Salary Escalation rate   
      - 1% Increase 55.54 48.24 
      - 1% Decrease (53.61) (45.40) 
(c) Effect of 1% change in assumed Attrition rate   
      - 1% Increase 5.32 2.91 
      - 1% Decrease (6.60) (3.97) 
 
Note: 

 
i) The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 
 
ii) The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the 
composition of the plan assets held, assessed risk of asset management, historical results of the return on plan 
assets and the Company's policy for plan asset management. 
 
b. Defined benefits plan: (Air Cargo Division) 
 
The following tables summarise net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the amount 
recognised in the Balance sheet for the gratuity plan for Cargo business.  
    

i.  Net employee benefit expense (recognized in the employee cost): 
 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Current service cost (including past service cost)   40.40   40.47 
Interest cost on benefit obligation     (7.23)   (4.82) 
Other Adjustment 1.00  
Net benefit expense 16.74 35.65 
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ii. Net asset to be recognized in the balance sheet: 
 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Present value of defined benefit obligation (299.09) (263.88) 
Fair value of plan assets 368.95 359.79 
Plan asset 69.86 95.91 

 
iii. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation: 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Opening value of defined benefit obligation at the 
beginning of the year 

263.88 258.01 

Current service cost 40.40 40.47 
Past service cost - plan amendments - - 
Interest cost 18.05 14.64 
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation (3.98) (13.35) 
Benefits paid (19.26) (35.89) 
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of 
the year 

299.08 263.88 

 
            iv. Changes in the fair value of plan assets: 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of year 359.79 329.09 
Expected Return on Plan Assets 6.35 3.52 
Employer Contributions 22.08 42.79 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets                         -                           20.29 
Benefits paid (19.27) (35.89) 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of year 368.95 359.79 

             
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below: 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Discount rate 7.00% 7.10% 
Salary escalation Rate 7.50% 7.50% 
Withdrawal Rate 5.00% 20.00% 

 

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in the actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.   

         Disclosure related to indication of effect of the defined benefit plan on the entity’s future cash flows: 
 
Expected Benefits payments for the year ending 
 

Year ending March 31, 2024 
Within 1 year   64.55   
1 - 2 year   58.80 
2 - 3 year   50.55   
3 - 4 year   42.46 
4 - 5 year   32.71   
5 - 10 years   99.38 

 
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
(a) Effect of 1% change in assumed discount rate   
      - 1% Increase (10.31) (9.09) 
      - 1% Decrease 11.14 9.81 
(b) Effect of 1% change in assumed Salary Escalation rate   
      - 1% Increase 6.41 4.84 
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      - 1% Decrease (6.00) (4.52) 
(c) Effect of 1% change in assumed Attrition rate   
      - 1% Increase 0.71 0.86 
      - 1% Decrease (0.78) (0.94) 

 
c. Defined contribution plan 

 
Contribution to provident and other funds under employee benefit expenses are as under: 
 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Contribution to Provident Fund 589.49 501.82 
Contribution to Superannuation Fund                        41.99                          35.99   
Contribution to ESI 15.88 16.50 

 
d. Leave benefit liabilities provided based on actuarial valuation amounts to Rs. 619.36 lakhs as at  

March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 491.44 lakhs) 
 
The actuarial assumptions (demographic & financial) employed for the calculations for MRO business as at 
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows. 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Discount rate 7.00% 7.30% 
Salary escalation rate  8.00% 8.00% 
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00% 

 
The actuarial assumptions (demographic & financial) employed for the calculations for Cargo business as at 
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows. 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Discount rate 7.00% 7.10% 
Salary escalation rate  7.50% 7.50% 
Withdrawal rate 20.00% 20.00% 

 
[ 

 

33. Related Party transactions: 
 
The following table provides the details of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant 
financial year and balances outstanding as on year end date. 
 

A.  Names of related parties and description of relationship: 
Sl. 
No. 

Relationship Related party Name 

(i) Holding Company GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL) 

(ii) GHIAL's holding Company GMR Airports Limited (GAL) 
(iii) GAL's holding Company GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited (formerly known as “GMR 

Infrastructure Limited”) (GIL) 
(iv) Ultimate holding Company GMR Enterprises Private Limited  
(v) Subsidiary Company GMR Aero Technic Limited (GATL)  

(vi) Fellow Subsidiaries  
(Where transactions have 
taken place during the 
year) 

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited 
GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited 
Raxa Security Services Limited 
GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited  
Delhi International Airport Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 
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Sl. 
No. 

Relationship Related party Name 

vii) Private company having 
common director (Section 8 
Company  

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation 
 

(viii) Post-employment benefit 
plan 

GACAEL Employees Gratuity Fund Trust. 
GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo and Logistics Private Limited Employees' Group 
Gratuity Trust (Formerly known as Hyderabad Menzies Air Cargo Private 
Limited Employees' Group Gratuity Trust) 

(ix) 

Key managerial personnel 
(KMP) 
 
 
 

Mr. GBS Raju - Chairman & Director  
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Arora –Director 
Mr. P. S. Nair –Director  
Mr. Pradeep Panicker - Director 
Mr. SGK Kishore- Director 
Mr. Bijal Tushar Ajinka – Additional Director  
Mr. Kandi Sreenivasulu – Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 29th April 2023) 
Dr. Kavitha Gudapati - Woman Director (Resigned w.e.f. 13th September 
2023) 
Mr. Ravinder Kumar Tyagi – Additional Director 
Mr. Sudhakar Rao – Additional Director 
Mr. Rakhal Panigrahi – Company secretary 
Mr. G. Chandrabushan- Manager 

 
B. Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel for the year ended: 
 

Details of Key Managerial 
Personnel 

Remuneration* Sitting fees 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Mrs. Kavitha Gudapati                    -                      -   0.15 0.15 
Mr. Bijal Ajinkya - - 1.10 - 
Mr. Ravinder Kumar Tyagi - - 1.20 - 
Mr. Sudhakar Rao - - 1.20 - 
Mr. Srikanth Vetcha - 55.59 - - 
Mr. Kandi Sreenivasulu 47.16 -   
Mr. Rakhal Panigrahi       16.40      14.32 - - 
G. Chandra Bushan 33.93                                         30.41   - - 
Total 94.56 100.32 3.65 0.15 

*excluding other employee benefits. 

C. Transactions with related parties for the year ended: 
 

  Particulars For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024 

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2023 

 (a)  GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited     

  Concessionaire fee 2,726.16 1,706.66 
  Reimbursement of salary cost 57.40 95.40 
  Repairs & Maintenance – Buildings 1.43 8.00 
  Repairs and Maintenance - Plant and machinery 1.30 1.31 
  Training charges 0.32 2.52 
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  Reimbursement of Other Expenses 4.30 4.15 
  Royalty charges 118.03 69.83 
  Power and water charges 368.21 348.89 

  Bank Guarantee commission 18.59 19.84 
  Interest on security deposit - Unwinding of discount  0.45 1.40 
  Communication – Telephone 0.74 0.43 
  Depreciation on ROU Assets 20.79 20.79 
  Follow me Vehicle Charges 2.06 1.75 
  Interest on Lease Liability 503.79 500.84 
  Amortization of intangible asset 229.65 297.50 
 Miscellaneous Expenses - 0.69 

 (b)  GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited  
  

Interest on Lease Liability 342.86 341.98 

Depreciation on ROU Asset 165.56                       165.56 

Interest on security deposit - Unwinding of discount 2.70 2.42 

Electricity and Water Charges  511.23 431.35 

Repairs and maintenance – Others  38.17 35.70 
(c) GMR Airport Developers Limited 

  

  Repairs and maintenance -IT 260.00 250.00 
  Repairs and maintenance -Others 60.50 77.25 
 Reimbursement of software maintenance 11.01 - 
  Capital work-in-progress 2.10 14.27 
(d) GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited  

  

Lodging and food expenses (Travelling and conveyance) 138.86 54.45 

Miscellaneous expenses 6.35 - 

Income from Cargo operations 18.73 7.27 
(e)  Raxa Security Services Limited 

  

Security services 204.35 180.56 
(f) Delhi International Airport Limited 

  

Royalty charges 112.90 51.54 

Electricity charges 1.19 2.20 

Interest on security deposit - Unwinding of discount 3.69 2.69 

Interest on Lease Liability 28.82 3.03 

Depreciation on ROU Asset 65.49 52.68 

Lease rentals and other related expenses 9.57 8.53 

Security deposit given 26.49 8.00 
 Amortisation of Deferred Expenditure  - 0.29 
(g) GMR Airports Limited 

  

Technical fees 1,257.41 762.88 

Training charges 72.00 - 
(h) GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited   

Power and water charges 4.36 - 

Repairs and Maintenance-Buildings 7.88 - 
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Interest on land lease liabilities 3.95 - 

Interest on Security deposit given 1.12 - 

Amortization of intangible asset (Land & CSB) 66.61 - 

(i) GMR Aero Technic Limited   

Reimbursement of expenses 3.63 0.63 

Consultancy charges - 0.63 
(j) GMR Goa International Airport Limited 

  

Repayment of Loan given (Inter-corporate Loan)  2,000.00 

Business Development Expenditure 2.00 - 

Interest income on loan given - 198.36 
(k) GMR Varalakshmi Foundation 

  

Charities and donations 13.36 23.00 
(l) GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo and Logistics Private Limited 

Employees' Group Gratuity Trust (Formerly known as 
Hyderabad Menzies Air Cargo Private Limited Employees' 
Group Gratuity Trust) 

  

Contribution to the Gratuity fund 23.08 43.53 
 

Note: The Company has received certain corporate group support services from its holding company, which are free of 
charge 
 
 
 
 

D. Balances Outstanding:  
 

  
Particulars 

As at March 
31, 2024 

As at March 
31, 2023 

(a) GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited      

Equity Share Capital 45,584.89 45,584.89 
Trade Payable 323.10 285.8 
Lease liability 34.34 59.85 
Payable for leasehold land rights 4,720.55 4,648.75 
Right-of-use Assets 20.79 41.59  
Right to operate Cargo facility- Land & CSB 3,215.05 3513.66 
Security Deposit  4.55 14.36 
Corporate guarantee given 28,639.20 30,894.27 

Advances given - 0.13 
(b) GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited  

  

  Security Deposit   26.64 23.94 
  Right of use Asset 2,317.88 2,483.44 
  Lease Liability 3,506.43 3,577.69 
  Trade Payables  2,460.92 3,009.65 
(c) GMR Airport Developers Ltd 

  

Trade Payable 213.35 45.39 

Payable for purchase of Intangibles 2.27 
 

(d) GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited  
  

Trade Payable 37.65 11.71 
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Advances received from Customers 3.55 1.24 
(e)  Raxa Security services Limited 

  

Trade Payable 30.86 37.13 

(f) GMR Airports Limited 
  

Trade Payable 158.01 64.28 
(g) GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited   

Payable to leasehold land rights 0.24 -  
 Security Deposit given 11.37  
(h) Delhi International Airport Ltd 

  

Security Deposit 41.80 31.13 
Advance to Suppliers - 0.50  
Right of use Asset 261.94 - 
Lease Liability 268.53 5.29 
Trade Payable 52.50 23.06 
Deferred Rentals - 1.80 

(i) GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo and Logistics Private Limited Employees' 
Group Gratuity Trust (Formerly known as Hyderabad Menzies Air Cargo 
Private Limited Employees' Group Gratuity Trust) 

  

  Trade Payables 0.87 0.87 
(j) GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited (GIL)     

Other Current Assets 4.72 4.72 
(k) GMR Aero Technic Limited 

  

  Investment in equity shares 10.00 10.00 
  Other receivables 32.77 29.13 

 

 
34.   Leases  

 

Leases 
 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 " Leases" with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 
replaces Ind AS 17 "Leases" and related interpretation and guidance. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the 
modified retrospective approach. Right-of-use assets (ROU) at April 1, 2019 for leases previously classified as operating 
leases were recognised and measured at an amount equal to lease liability (adjusted for any related prepayments). As a  
 
result, the comparative information has not been restated. The Company has discounted lease payments using the 
incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019 for measuring the lease liability.  
 
Accordingly, on transition to Ind AS 116, the Company recognised the right-of-use assets of Rs. 8,059.44 lakhs and lease 
liabilities amounting of Rs. 7,964.42 lakhs. Consequent to the amendment of lease agreement with GMR Hyderabad 
Aviation SEZ Limited w.e.f December 01, 2019, remeasurement of lease liability has been carried out to reflect the revised 
lease rentals and the corresponding adjustment of Rs. 3,790.40 lakhs has been done to ROU. Consequent to the 
termination of lease agreement with GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (i.e., on purchase of terminal 
building) w.e.f July 01, 2020, remeasurement of lease liability has been carried out and corresponding adjustment of Rs. 
1,884.68 lakhs has been done to ROU.  
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Right of Use Assets  
Particulars Amount 

As at April 01, 2022                 2,764.07    

Additions  -         
Depreciation/amortization till 31st March 2023         (239.04) 
As at 31 March 2023           2,525.03  

    

   
As at April 01, 2023 2,525.03 

Additions 770.73         
Depreciation/amortization for the year          (293.66) 
As at March 31, 2024          3,002.10   

 
Lease Liability  
Particulars Amount 
As at April 01, 2022     3,799.22  
Additions          - 
Interest For the year           351.49  
Repayment made during the year         (507.96) 
As at 31 March 2023     3,642.75  
    
    
As at April 01, 2023           3,642.75 
Additions         751.22 
Interest For the year           393.74  
Repayment made during the year         (542.70) 
As at March 31, 2024     4,245.01  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Maturity profile of lease liability 

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on 
contractual Undiscounted payments. 
 

Year ended 31 March 2024 0 to 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total 

Lease liabilities 889.67       2,239.71     4,684.25     7,813.63  

     
Year ended 31 March 2023 0 to 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total 

Lease liabilities 745.54 1,554.98 5,105.34 7,405.86 

 

Disclosed as:   

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

Non-Current   3,754.17   3,236.88 

Current 
 

490.84 405.88 
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    Following amount has been recognized in statement of profit and Loss account 
 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Amortization on right to use asset 293.66 239.04 

Interest on lease liability 393.74 351.49 

Variable lease payments (included under other expenses) - - 

Total amount recognized in statement of profit and loss account 687.40 590.53 
 

35. Capital and Other Commitments 
 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for during the year 
(net of capital advances) of Rs. 1339.11 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 – Rs. 4,275.94 lakhs) 

 
36. Contingent Liabilities 

 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2024 

As at 
March 31,2023 

Matter relating to indirect tax under dispute (refer footnotes below (a)      528.88        1,151.47   

Matters relating to income tax under dispute (refer footnotes below (b) 4,616.69 4,616.69 
Claims against the company not acknowledged as dues (refer footnotes 
below (c)    1,487.86     1,487.86  

Bank guarantees issued 124.80 - 

 Total  6,758.23  7,256.02 
 

(a) Matter relating to indirect tax under dispute   
  

(i) The Company has filed an appeal with Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT) against the 
order of Commissioner of Service Tax for the rejection of service tax refund claim amounting to Rs. 102.92 lakhs. 

       
(ii) The Company has received a show cause notice from the Office of Commissioner (Audit) Central tax requiring the 
Company to show cause as to why CENVAT credit of Rs. 64.86 Lakhs along with applicable interest and penalty should 
not be reversed/demanded on certain exempted services. The Company has filed a reply to the Show Cause notice with 
the Office of Commissioner (Audit) Central tax on October 10, 2017. Personal hearing completed on March 27, 2018, AC 
has passed an order dated March 28, 2018 by disallowing Company demand, order received on April 9, 2018. As a result 
of which, there is a demand levied of Rs. 64.86 Lakhs as service tax along with penalty of Rs. 63.19 Lakhs. Further, the 
Company has filed an appeal against the order with Commissioner (Appeals), Central tax during the previous years. The 
Company has received an unfavorable order from Commissioner of Customs and Central Tax (Appeals), Hyderabad on 
November 12, 2018, directing the Additional Commissioner to recalculate the demand. Subsequently, the Company has 
filed an appeal against the unfavorable order with CESTAT, Hyderabad on February 11, 2019. The company has paid Rs. 
9.55 Lakhs till the date of filing appeal with CESTAT in order to comply with the relevant provisions of the act for filing 
the appeal for application. 
 
Based on an internal assessment, Management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as such 
no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
 
(iii) The Company has received a SCN No. 31/2019-20 dated July 23, 2019 along with corrigendum to SCN dated July 25, 
2019 from DGGI (Directorate General of GST Intelligence) on following points: 

 

(a) Non reversal of CENVAT Credit against sale of goods for Rs. 2.58 lakhs.   

(b) Proposing disallowance of Export of Services on the ground that 'Place of supply' for MRO Services of Aircraft 
going out of India after being put to use India can't be said to be outside India. Hence it does not qualify 
'Export of Service' and hence subject to Service Tax for Rs. 207.99 lakhs along with applicable interest and 
penalty. 
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The Company has filed a writ petition on August 21, 2019 and received interim relief on August 22, 2019 staying the 
proceedings. Department has filed its reply and requested for stay vacation. The company is in the process of filing 
rejoinder. Based on an internal assessment, Management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable 
and as such no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
 
(iv) During the FY 21-22,the Company has received a show cause notice u/s 73 from the GST Office of Deputy 
Commissioner for the FY 18-19 requiring the Company to reverse ITC on non-business transactions & exempt supplies 
amounting to Rs. 46.02 Lakhs under Rule 42 of the CGST Rules and ITC amounting to Rs 22.97 Lakhs in respect of goods 
and services  which are barred under Section 17(5) of the CGST Act & Non reconcillation and supllier not deposited tax 
1.42 Lakhs. 
 
Personal hearing happed on  March 28, 2024  and Orders are awaited 
Based on an internal assessment, Management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as such 
no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
 
(v) In previous years, the Company has received a show cause notice u/s 73 from the GST Office of Deputy Commissioner 
for the FY 2019-20 requiring the Company to reverse ITC amounting to Rs 8.36 Lakhs in respect of goods and services 
which are barred under Section 17(5) of the CGST Act and supplier not deposited tax of Rs. 1.11 Lakhs. 
 
Based on an internal assessment, Management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as such 
no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
 
(vi) In Previous years, the Company has received a show cause notice u/s 73 from the GST Office of Deputy 
Commissioner for the FY 2020-21 requiring the Company to reverse ITC amounting to Rs 7.46 Lakhs in respect of Excess 
ITC claimed in GSTR-3B compared to the tax on inward supplies. 
 
Based on an internal assessment, Management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as such 
no provision has been made in these Financial Statements 
 
(b) Matters relating to income tax under dispute 
       

(i) The Company had received assessment order during previous years for the assessment years 2009-2010, 2010-2011, 
2011-2012 and 2012-13 respectively, denying the deduction u/s 80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and demanding tax of 
Rs. 154.18 Lakhs (including interest of Rs 21.64 Lakhs), Rs. 272.51 Lakhs (including interest of Rs 69.52 Lakhs), Rs. 302.70 
Lakhs (including interest of Rs.74.38 Lakhs) and Rs. 254.40 Lakhs (including interest of Rs 65.96 Lakhs) for the respective 
assessment years. The Company had filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income - Tax (Appeals), Hyderabad and had  
paid Rs. 154.18 Lakhs, Rs. 272.51 Lakhs, Rs. 302.70 Lakhs, and Rs. 254.40 Lakhs for the assessment years 2009-2010, 2010-
2011, 2011-2012 and 2012-13 respectively under protest. During the previous years, the said appeals were dismissed by 
the Commissioner of Income - Tax (Appeals), Hyderabad against which the Company had filed an appeal with the 
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, Hyderabad.      
During the FY 2016-17, the Company has received a favorable order from Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, Hyderabad 
allowing the deduction u/s 80 IA of the Income tax Act, 1961 for the Assessment years 2009-2010, 2010-2011, 2011-2012 
and 2012-13. The department appealed against the ITAT order before High Court in respect of the aforesaid years which 
is pending. The company has applied under Vivad se vishwas scheme for settlement of disputed taxes for AY 2009-10 to 
AY 2012-13 on December 30, 2020 and awaiting department’s confirmation. Also paid amounts paid for AY 2009-10 and 
AY 2010-11 as per applications accepted by the department. 
During the FY 2022-23 the company has received an order for full and final settlement of Tax Arrear under section 5(2) 
read with section 6 of the direct tax Vivad Se Viswas Act, 2020. However, the company is waiting for the final order. 

       
(ii) The Company had received an order during previous years for the assessment year 2013-14 and 2014-15 respectively, 
denying the deduction u/s 80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Per this order the refund receivable to the Company has 
reduced by Rs. 418.47 Lakhs for A.Y. 2013-14 and Rs. 310.92 Lakhs for A.Y 2014-15. Aggrieved by the reduction in refund 
and the demand, the Company has filed an appeal with the Commissioner of Income - Tax (Appeals), Hyderabad. During 
the previous year, the Company has received a favorable order from Commissioner of Income -Tax (Appeals), 
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Hyderabad allowing the deduction u/s 80-IA of the Income tax Act, 1961 for the Assessment years 2013-14 and 2014-15. 
The Department appealed against the CIT order before ITAT in respect of the aforesaid years.  
 
During financial year 2021-22, the company has received a favorable order from Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, 
Hyderabad allowing the deduction u/s 80 IA of the Income tax Act, 1961 for the Assessment years 2013-2014 and 2014-
2015. The department appealed against the ITAT order before High Court in respect of the aforesaid years which is 
pending.  The company has applied under Vivad se vishwas scheme for settlement of disputed taxes for AY 2013-14 to 
AY 2014-15 on December 30, 2020 and awaiting department’s confirmation. However, based on an internal assessment 
the Management  is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as such no provision has been made 
in these Financial Statements. 
     
(iii) The Company has received an order during the previous year for the assessment year 2015-16 denying the deduction 
u/s 80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Subsequently, the Company filed for rectification of order u/s 154 of the Income-
tax Act, 1961 and as per the rectified order there is a tax demand amounting to Rs. 417.17 Lakhs for AY 2015-16. During 
the previous year FY 2018-19, the department has issued a refund order advice stating that refund for AY 2017-18 has 
been adjusted against the demand for AY 2015-16 to the extent of Rs. 377.05 Lakhs. Aggrieved by the demand the 
Company has filed an appeal with the Commissioner of Income - Tax (Appeals), Hyderabad which matter is pending. 
However, based on an internal assessment the Management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable 
and as such no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
 
 (iv) During FY 2018-19, the Company has received an order for the assessment year 2016-17 denying the deduction u/s 
80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and as per the order there is a tax demand amounting to Rs. 16.47 Lakhs for AY 2016-
17. Aggrieved by the demand the Company has filed an appeal with the Commissioner of Income - Tax (Appeals), 
Hyderabad which matter is pending. However, based on an internal assessment the Management is confident that no 
liability in this regard would be payable and as such no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
 

(v) During the FY 2021-22, the Company has received an order for the assessment year 2017-18 of the Income Tax Act, 
1961, disallowing the credits made in bank statement during the demonetisation period (i.e. from 09th Nov, 2016 to 31st 
Dec, 2016) and the same has been added to income as "Unexplained cash credits". As per the order there is a tax demand 
amounting to Rs. 2,397.42 Lakhs for AY 2017-18. Aggrieved by the demand the Company has filed a Writ petition before 
Highcourt. However, based on an internal assessment the Management is confident that no liability in this regard would 
be payable and as such no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
 

(vi) During the FY 2021-22, the Company has received an order for the assessment year 2018-19 denying the deduction 
u/s 80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. As per the order there is a tax demand amounting to Rs. 72.45 Lakhs for AY 2018-
19. Aggrieved by the demand the Company has filed an appeal with the Commissioner of Income - Tax (Appeals), 
Hyderabad which matter is pending. However, based on an internal assessment the Management is confident that no 
liability in this regard would be payable and as such no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
  
(c) Claims against the company not acknowledged as dues 

 

(i) Custom officers Salaries 
       

The Company accrued Customs officers' salaries stationed at Air Cargo Terminal based on debit notes raised by the 
Customs Department on GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL) as the ultimate cost has to be borne 
by the custodian i.e. the Company. GHIAL filed a writ petition under Article 226 of the Constitution of India in the 
Honorable High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad against the demand raised in previous years. 
GHIAL received an order from the Honorable High court of Andhra Pradesh (Single Judge), stating that the grounds on 
which the levy was made by Customs Department were wholly unsustainable and accordingly the Company had 
reversed the accrued customs cost amounting to Rs. 1,402.09 Lakhs for the period from March 23, 2008 to March 31, 2012.
      
Subsequent to the above order, the Customs Department preferred an appeal against the same and on November 2, 2012, 
a bench of two judges of the Honorable High Court of Andhra Pradesh passed an order for interim suspension of the 
said order passed by the Honorable Single Judge and the matter is pending. The Management, based on internal 
assessment, is confident that there is no financial impact of this interim suspension order and accordingly, no provision 
has been made in these Financial Statements. 
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The Appeal filed by the Customs Department is dismissed. The order passed by Single Judge bench was upheld by the 
Hon’ble High Court  on March 27, 2024. 

 
 

 

(ii) Provident Fund 
 

During FY 2018-19, the Company has received an order from Regional PF Commissioner – I, Regional Office II, 
Hyderabad, regarding the payment of contributions to International Worker under Employees Provident Funds and 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 demanding an amount of Rs. 14.26 Lakhs. The company has filed writ petition before 
the High Court of Telangana and received Stay Order dated 12th June, 2019. However, based on an internal assessment 
the management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as such no provision has been made 
in these Financial Statements.  
     
(iii) Consumer Grievance 
During the FY 2016-17, the Company has received an order from District Consumer Forum (RR Dist), regarding the 
compensation for short delivery of cargo to M/s. Excell Media Pvt. Ltd amounts to Rs. 0.92 Lakhs along with applicable 
interest. The Company has filed an appeal vide. FA. No.821/2020 before the Telangana State District Consumer Redressal 
Commission challenging the final order passed by the Ranga Reddy District Consumer Redressal Forum. However, 
based on an internal assessment the management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as 
such no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
 
(iv) Registration of Cargo Terminal Building 
 

During the FY 2021-22, the Company has received an order from Sub Registrar, Shamshabad regarding the payment of 
fine of Rs. 69.09 Lakhs equal to five times of Registration fee of Rs.13.82 Lakhs. The company has filed writ petition before 
the High Court of Telangana and received Stay Interim Order dated September 27, 2021. However, based on an internal 
assessment the management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as such no provision has 
been made in these Financial Statements. 
 
(v) Clearance of aircraft 
During the FY 2021-22, the Customs has issued a penalty of Rs. 0.75 Lakhs on M/s GMR Air cargo and Aerospace 
Engineering Limited for their role in irregular import of aircraft vide Order dated 26th October, 2021. The Company is 
in the process of filing Appeal with Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal. However, based on an internal 
assessment the management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as such no provision has 
been made in these Financial Statements. 
 
37. Segment Reporting 
 

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of services 
provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that serves different markets. The analysis of 
geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.  

 
The Company has identified two reportable segments under Ind AS 108 as follows: 
a) Maintenance, Repairs and Overhauling (MRO) and; 
b) GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo (Air Cargo) 

 
The Chief Operating Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose 
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based 
on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. 
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 Segment Revenue Segment Profit 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

MRO 31,674.10 27,420.71 5,847.58  4,050.82 
Air Cargo 15,024.24 10,825.24  2,376.61  (427.12) 
 46,698.34 38,245.95 8,224.19 3,623.70 
Less: Inter segment  -28.00    6.00    -    -   
Total 46,670.34 38,239.95 8,224.69 3,623.70 
Other income   1,704.99 971.46 
Finance costs    (3,601.32)  (3,572.80) 
Tax expense                          -   - 
Profit after tax   6,328.36 1,022.36 
 

 As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Segment assets     
MRO 40,114.47 34,951.67 
Air Cargo 13896.85 13,769.61 
Unallocable assets 12,734.59 9,330.68 
Inter - segment   (2,801.25)  (2,801.25) 
Total assets 63,944.69 55,250.71 
  

 
 

Segment liabilities 
 

 
MRO 18,368.76 14,550.11 
Air Cargo 11,202.07 10,254.50 
Unallocable liabilities 28,561.07 30,838.57 
Inter – segment  (2,801.26) (2,801.25) 
Total liabilities 55,330.64  52,841.93 

 
Other segment information 
 

 Depreciation and amortization Additions to non - current assets 
 For the year ended  

March 31, 2024 
For the year ended 

 March 31, 2023 
For the year ended  

March 31, 2024 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
MRO 2,210.34 1,906.60 5,796.49 3090.16 
Air Cargo 746.13 648.49 534.10 570.41 

Unallocated items 
Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment. 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and 
presenting the standalone financial statements of the company as a whole. 

38. Taxation 
 

a. In view of the brought-forward business losses of the Company, also considering the brought-forward losses of the 
demerged undertaking (MRO business), no provision for current tax has been made in these standalone financial 
statements. The Company, post-merger, has filed the income tax return for the year ended March 31, 2019 on 
November 30, 2019 and for the year ended March 31, 2020 on January 31, 2021. During the quarter the company has 
received the refund order and adjustment has been made to the current tax provision for that financial year. 
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b. Matters relating to erstwhile GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo and Logistics Private Limited (GHACLPL) (Transferor 
company merged into the Company): 

 

i. The Company has undertaken necessary steps to comply with the transfer pricing regulations. The Management 
is of the opinion that the international and domestic transactions are at arm’s length and believes that the 
aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the Financial Statements, particularly on the amount of tax 
expense and that of provision for taxation. 

 
During the financial year ended March 31,2024, Considering the huge accumulated losses Rs. 38,820.21 Lakhs there is an 
un-certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 
Hence, deferred tax asset is recognized to extent of deferred tax liability in the books. 

39. Bureau of Civil Aviation (BCAS), through its order dated April 28, 2010, decided that there shall be a Sterile Cargo 
Holding Area at the airports. The access to cargo processing area will be regulated by airport entry permits issued by 
BCAS.  Accordingly, Central Industrial Security Force (CISF) personnel were deployed as per the instructions of BCAS 
and the security charges includes accrual of security cost of CISF personnel. W.e.f. 1st July, 2019 vide AIC No.15/2019 
dated 19th June, 2019, the collection of Passenger Service Fee (Security Component) is replaced with Aviation Security 
Fee (ASF). ASF will be collected and remitted by airlines to the National Aviation Security Fee Trust (NASFT). All 
expenses relating to CISF will be met through NASFT directly. Accordingly, based on the communication from Holding 
Company (GHIAL), the Company has discontinued recognition of salary provision of CISF personnel deputed at cargo 
terminal from 01st July, 2019. The Management is confident that there would be no additional liability other than the 
amount accrued in the books of account. 
 
40. As at March 31, 2024, the Company has accumulated losses (including amalgamation adjustment deficit account) of 
Rs. 38,820.21 lakhs (as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 45,025.50 lakhs). The Management has undertaken several initiatives to 
improve its income from operations and establish profitable operations including the composite scheme of arrangement. 
Based on the business plans for the current year including the cash flow projections, it has sufficient future cash flows to 
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. The credit rating for the Company’s Term loan against NIIF IFL has been 
confirmed by ICRA Limited with letter dated December 27,2022 as [ICRA]AA(CE) (Positive). In view of the Management 
there is no significant uncertainty on the going concern assumption and that the Company will have positive net worth 
in the coming years.  
 

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited ("GHIAL") has confirmed its continuous financial support to the 
Company to meet the operational requirements as they arise and to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. 
Accordingly, these Financial Statements have been prepared on Going Concern basis and do not include any adjustments 
relating to the recoverability of assets or the amounts of liabilities that may be necessary if the entity is unable to continue 
as a going concern. 
 
41. Financial risk management objectives and policies 
 

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other 
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees 
to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash 
and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 
 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the 
management of these risks. The Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures 
and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk 
objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the 
appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative 
purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which 
are summarised below 
 
Market risk 
 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, equity risk, commodity risk 
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and demand risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and derivative 
financial instruments. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024. 
 
 

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest 
rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and on 
the basis of hedge designations in place at March 31, 2024. 
The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity; provisions. 
 

The following assumption have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses: 
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is 
based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2024. 
 
Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily 
to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with fixed interest rates. The Company does not have any long-term debt 
with floating interest rates.  

 

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to fixed interest rate is mentioned below: 
 

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Term Loan from NIIF IFL 26,550.00 28,650.00 
Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited - 39.40 
Total 26,550.00 28,689.40 

 
Interest rate sensitivity 
 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of 
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected 
through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows: 

 
 Increase/decrease 

in Interest rate 
Effect on profit 
before tax 

As at March 31, 2024   
Term Loans +0.50% (141.01) 

- 0.50% 141.01 
Overdraft facility from bank +0.50% (9.88) 

- 0.50%                    9.88 
 
 

 Increase/decrease 
in Interest rate 

Effect on profit 
before tax 

As at March 31, 2023   
Overdraft facility from bank +0.50% (1757.22) 
Overdraft facility from bank - 0.50%               1757.22 

 

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable 
market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years. 
 

     Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes 
in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily 
to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). 
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The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of reporting year expressed in Indian Rupees are as 
follows: 

 

Particulars 
Currencies 
Exposure 

As at March 31, 2024 

Amount in Foreign 
currency 

Rs in Lakhs 

Trade payables 

USD          7,74,471.79           645.95  
EURO              72,866.69             65.49  
SGD              22,938.79             14.16  
CHF                   105.47               0.10  
GBP              14,550.25             15.28  

Sundry Creditors Capital Goods USD              20,831.38             17.37  
Trade receivables USD        86,54,415.03       7,218.21  
Cash and cash equivalents USD          8,69,706.90           725.38  
Advances to Vendors USD          3,54,756.89           295.88  
Advance from customers USD              82,116.25             68.49  
Unbilled revenue USD        12,47,609.54       1,040.57  

 

Particulars Currencies Exposure 

As at March 31, 2023 

Amount in Foreign 
currency 

Rs in Lakhs 

Trade payables 

USD     4,36,170.74                    358.55  
EURO     1,70,926.30                    153.15  
SGD           1,182.40                         0.73  
GBP         27,904.85                       28.42  

Trade receivables USD   55,72,655.37                 4,581.10  
Cash and cash equivalents USD   10,26,309.55                    843.68  
Advances to Vendors USD     5,44,352.28                    447.48  
Advance from customers USD         39,171.48                       32.20  
Capital Creditors USD         15,619.82                       12.84  
Unbilled revenue USD   34,06,504.52                 2,800.31  

 
Foreign currency sensitivity 

 

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and other foreign currencies 
against company’s functional currency. 5% represents the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk 
internally to the key managerial personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change 
in the foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis considers only outstanding foreign currency denominated 
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 5% change in foreign currency rate.   
 

As at March 31, 2024, A positive number below indicates an increase in profit when the functional currency weakening 
against the USD and when functional currency weakening for other foreign currencies. For a 5 % strengthening of 
functional currency against USD and other foreign currencies, there would be a comparable opposite impact on the 
profit.   
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 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Particulars Impact on profit after tax Impact on profit after tax 
USD Sensitivity   
INR/USD- Increase by 5% 427.41 413.45                 
INR/USD- Decrease by 5% (427.41) (413.45) 
EURO Sensitivity   
INR/EURO-Increase by 5% (3.27) (7.66) 
INR/EURO- Decrease by 5% 3.27 7.66 
GBP sensitivity   
INR/GBP-Increase by 5% (0.76) (1.42) 
INR/GBP- Decrease by 5%  0.76  1.42 
SGD sensitivity   
INR/SGD-Increase by 5% (0.71) (0.04) 
INR/SGD- Decrease by 5% 0.71 0.04 
CHF sensitivity   
INR/CHF-Increase by 5% (0.005) - 
INR/CHF- Decrease by 5% 0.005 - 

 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk 
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The 
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing 
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of 
financial assets and liabilities. Also parent company will provide support in order to meet financial obligations of the 
Company. 
 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments. 

 
 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Up to 1 year 1 - 5 year More than 5 year Total Contracted  
cash flows 

Term Loan – NIIF IFL 2,700.00 13,800.00 10,050.00 26,550.00 
Trade payables 7,947.27 - - 7,947.27 
Leases 889.67 2239.71 4,684.25 7,813.63 
Payable for Lease-Hold Land 
Rights and CSB Lease 

      
384.61 

 
1,963.45 

 
8,381.09 

 
10,729.15 

Other financial liabilities 6,417.52                      -                        -   6,417.52 
 
 
  

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Up to 1 year 1 - 5 year More than 5 
year 

Total Contracted  
cash flows 

Term Loan – NIIF IFL 2,100.00 12,300.00 14,250.00 28,650.00 
Trade payables 7874.78 -                      -   7,874.78 
Leases 745.54 1,554.98 5,105.34 7405.85 
Payable for Lease-Hold Land Rights 
and CSB Lease 

      
431.75 

 
1,784.96 

 
8,944.19 

 
11,156.96 

Other financial liabilities 5,649.30                      -                        -   5,649.30 
 

 
     Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade 



GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited  
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

  (All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

 
 

 

receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign 
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. 
 

Trade receivables 
Customer credit risk is managed by the Company as per approved debtors policy and established procedures and 
controls relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. 
 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The 
Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in 
several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets. 

 

     Excessive risk Concentration 
 

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or activities in the 
same geographical region or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to 
be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative 
sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry. 
In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company is trying to expand the customer base from Middle 
East and SAARC countries. Also additional revenue stream is in the pipeline i.e., from line maintenance. 

42.  Capital management 
 

The Company’s capital management objective is to maximise the total shareholder return by optimising cost of capital 
through flexible capital structure that supports growth. Further, the Company ensures optimal credit risk profile to 
maintain/enhance credit rating. 
 
The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plan and long-term strategic 
plans. The funding requirements are met through internal accruals and long-term/short-term borrowings. The Company 
monitors the capital structure on the basis of Net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of 
the Company. 
 

For the purpose of capital management, equity includes issued equity share capital and other equity. Net debt includes 
all long and short-term borrowings as reduced by cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. 
 
The following table summarises the capital of the Company: 
 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2024 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

Borrowings  28,561.07 30,838.57 

Cash and cash Equivalents & Other Bank Balances (1,207.24) (1200.01) 

Net debt 27,353.83 29,638.56 

Equity 8,614.05   2,408.76  

Net debt to Equity ratio   3.18    12.30   

 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that 
it meets financial covenants attached to the loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in 
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no 
breaches in the financial covenants of any loans and borrowing in the current year. 
 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for the year ended March 31, 2024. 
 
43. Fair values:  

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities (except for those instruments carried at fair value) appearing 
in the Financial Information is reasonable approximation of fair values.  
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 Particulars Carrying value Fair Value 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Financial assets      

Valued at cost     

Investments 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 

Valued at fair value through profit 
and loss 

    

Investments 9,303.52 5,516.86 9,303.52 5,516.86 

Valued at amortized cost     

Investments  -   -  -   - 

Trade receivable 7,911.71 4,766.64 7,911.71 4,766.64 

Other financial assets 2,020.34 3,323.13 2,020.34 3,323.13 

Cash and cash equivalent and other 
bank balances 

1,207.24 1,200.01 1,207.24 1,200.01 

Total Financial Assets  20,452.81 14,816.64 20,452.81 14,816.64 

     
Financial liabilities     

Valued at amortized cost     

Borrowings 28,561.07 30,838.57 28,561.07 30,838.57 

Lease Liabilities 4,245.01 8,190.90 4,245.01 8,190.90 

Trade payables 7,947.27 3,642.75 7,947.27 3,642.75 

Other financial liabilities 6,417.52 5,649.30 6,417.52 5,649.30 

Total Financial Liabilities 47,170.87 48,321.52  47,170.87 48,321.52  

 
The management assessed the cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables trade payables, bank overdrafts and other 
current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged 
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 
 
44. Fair Value Hierarchy: 
 
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities#. 
 
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024: 
 

Particulars Date of valuation Total Fair value measurement using 
Quoted prices 

in active 
markets 

Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Significant 
unobserva
ble inputs 

(Level 1)# (Level 2) (Level 3) 
Financial assets      
Investments held at fair value 
through profit and loss 

March 31, 2024 9,303.52 9,303.52 - - 

  
There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year. 
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31 2023: 
 

 Date of valuation Total Fair value measurement using 
Quoted prices 

in active 
markets 

Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Significant 
unobservab

le inputs 
(Level 1)# (Level 2) (Level 3) 

Financial assets      
Investments held at fair value 
through profit and loss 

March 31, 2023 5,516.86 5,516.86 - - 

 
There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ending March 31, 2024 and year ending 
March 31, 2023. 
# The mutual funds are valued using closing NAV.  
 
 
 

45. During the previous year, the Management has identified the involvement of two employees favoring certain vendors 
with respect to the procurement of goods or services and thereby causing financial loss to the Company to the tune Rs.50 
lakhs (approximately) based on internal estimates. Management has initiated an investigation and legal proceedings 
against the employees. The company has taken necessary measures to further strengthen the procurement process 
subsequent to above incidence. 
 
46. Use of estimates and judgement  

 

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 
 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end 
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year. 
      
(A) Judgements            

 

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements:  
 
Service Concession Arrangements -   
          
Management has assessed applicability of Appendix D to Ind AS 115 – “Service Concession Arrangements (SCA)” to 
operations and maintenance agreements entered into by the Company for provisioning of cargo services at Hyderabad 
Airport. In assessing the applicability, management has exercised significant judgement in relation to the underlying 
ownership of the assets, terms of the arrangement entered with the grantor, ability to determine prices, fair value of 
construction service, assessment of right to guaranteed cash etc. Based on detailed evaluation, management has 
determined that this arrangement meets the criteria for recognition as service concession arrangements. 
 
(B) Estimates and Assumptions 
          
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
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financial year, are described below. The company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when 
the Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, 
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes 
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.  
 
Impairment of Cash Generating Unit (CGU):       
 

 

The Company reviews it’s carrying value of CGU, annually, or more frequently when there is an indication for 
impairment. For the purpose of impairment testing, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the assets 
for assessing the value in use. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell . 
     
Income tax and Deferred Tax 
 

Significant judgements are required in determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be 
paid/recovered for uncertain tax provisions. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary 
difference to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which those 
deductible temporary difference can be utilized. 
 
Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)    
         
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality 
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly 
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.    
         

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans 
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds.     

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval 
in response to demographic changes.           
 
Fair value measurement of financial instruments  
        
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based 
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounting 
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not 
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such 
as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value 
of financial instruments. 
        
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment  
 
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets at the end of each reporting 
period. This assessment may result in change in the depreciation / amortization expense in future periods. 
 
Provision for doubtful receivables 
 
The Company makes provision for doubtful receivables based on a provision matrix which takes in to account historical 
credit loss experience and adjusted for current estimates. 
 
Other estimates 
The preparation of Financial Statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, 
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of Financial information and the reported amount of revenues 
and expenses for the reporting period. 
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Note 47
A Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in progress                221.09                       309.88                      99.78                          -                      630.75 

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in progress             2,143.06                       258.90                        2.16                          -                   2,404.12 

B

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

GMR 147 School                630.75                    630.75 
Total                630.75                               -                              -                            -                      630.75 

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

GMR 147 School             2,143.06                       258.90                        2.16                          -                   2,404.12 
Total             2,143.06                       258.90                        2.16                          -                   2,404.12 

Note 48
A Ageing schedule of intangible assets under development

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in progress                110.97                               -                        82.58                    193.55 
Projects temporarily suspended                        -                                 -                              -                            -                              -   
Total                110.97                               -                        82.58                          -                      193.55 

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in progress                  82.71                         13.71                            -                      69.37                    165.79 
Projects temporarily suspended                        -                                 -                              -                            -                              -   
Total                  82.71                         13.71                            -                      69.37                    165.79 

B

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Canteen & Toilet Building work 68.21                               -                              -                            -   68.21
Cargo Terminal                        -   109.98                            -                            -   109.98
Miscelleneous Project 15.36                               -                              -                            -   15.36
Total                  83.57                       109.98                            -                            -   193.55

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Cargo terminal                               -                        82.58                       82.58 
Material Handling System 
(Ballmats and Roller Beds)

                 51.07                       51.07 

Miscelleneous Project                  32.14                       32.14 
Total                  83.21                               -                        82.58                          -                      165.79 

For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan the 
project wise details of when the project is expected to be completed is given below as of:

To be completed in 

To be completed in 

For intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original 
plan the project wise details of when the project is expected to be completed is given below as of:

To be completed in 

To be completed in 



49 Ageing schedule of trade receivables

Not due* Less than 6 
months

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables – 
considered good

4,310.94            1,807.08                  1,388.33               371.04                29.30                     5.03                           7,911.71            

Undisputed trade receivables – 
credit impaired

-                    -                           -                        22.62                  0.25                       41.44                         64.31                 

Disputed trade receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit 
risk

-                    -                           -                        -                      -                         -                      

Less: Allowance for credit loss -64.31                 
Total trade receivables 7,911.71             

Not due Less than 6 
months

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables – 
considered good

1,555.42            2,606.29                  517.75                  78.87                  6.44                       1.87                           4,766.64            

Undisputed trade receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

-                    -                           -                        -                      -                         -                             -                     

Undisputed trade receivables – 
credit impaired

50.00                 -                           -                        -                      0.25                       41.44                         91.69                 

Disputed trade receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit 
risk

-                    -                           -                        -                      -                         -                             -                     

Less: Allowance for credit loss 91.69-                 
Total trade receivables 4,766.64            

50 Ageing schedule of trade payables

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Micro, small and medium 
exterprises

30.40                 -                           -                        -                      30.40                     

Others 5,077.38            69.36                       125.39                  2,644.74             7,916.87                
Total trade payables 7,947.27                

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Micro, small and medium 
exterprises

108.17               -                           -                        -                      108.17                   

Others 3,373.16            11.00                       33.68                    4,348.77             7,766.61                
Total trade payables 7,874.78                

As at 31 March 2023 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total

As at 31 March 2024 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total

As at 31 March 2024 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total

As at 31 March 2023 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
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51. Financial Ratios

S.No Ratio Numerator Denominator
As at 

31 March 2024
As at 

31 March 2023 % Variance Reason for variance

1 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.25                   1.28                     -2.00%

2 Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholders's equity 3.32                   12.80                   -74.10%

Debt equity ratio has improved mainly due 
to significant increase in profit in current 
financial year

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Earnings available for debt service                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
(Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating 
expenses like depreciation and other 
amortizations + Interest + other adjustments 
like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.)

Debt Service = Interest & Lease Payments + 
Principal Repayments                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

2.10                   1.04                     101.23%

Debt service coverage ratio has improved 
mainly due to significant increase in profit 
in current financial year

4 Return on Equity (ROE) Net Profits after taxes – Preference Dividend Average Shareholder’s Equity 114.82% 53.38% 115.11%
Return on equity has improved due to 
increase in profit in current year

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold OR sales Average Inventory                                                                                       1.07                   1.20                     -10.25%

6 Trade receivables turnover ratio
Net Credit Sales = Gross credit sales - Sales 
returns                                                                     Average Accounts Receivable                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            7.36                   8.10                     -9.11%

7 Trade payables turnover ratio Net Credit Purchases                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    (Gross credit purchases - Purchase returns)Average Trade Payables                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            0.86                   0.85                     0.40%
8 Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales  = Total Sales - Sales returns                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             Working Capital                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        866.13% 812.73% 6.57%

9 Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales = Total Sales - Sales returns                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             13.56% 2.67% 407.18%

Net Profit ratio has improved mainly due 
to significant increase in profit in current 
financial year

10 Return on capital employed (ROCE) Earning before interest and taxes Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + 
Total Debt + Deferred tax liability                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           23.30% 10.43% 123.51%

Return on capital employed (ROCE) has 
improved mainly due to significant 
increase in profit in current financial year

11 Return on investment (ROI) Income generated from investments Time weighted average investments 20.23% 6.30% 221.06% Increase in invesments



GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited  
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

  (All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

 
 

 

 
 

52. The following are the additional disclosures as per schedule III 
 

a. No Loan or advances given to the Directors, Promoters, KMPs and related parties which are repayable on 
demand or without any terms of repayment. 

b. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in books of account that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments (such as, search or survey or any 
other relevant provisions) under Income Tax Act, 1961. 

c. The Company does not have any relationship with Struck off Companies. 
d. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 
e. The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against 

the Company for holding any Benami property. 
f. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any 

other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) 
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall : 

i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
g. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 

Party) with the understating (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall: 
i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 

or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
 
 
 
  



GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited  
CIN: U45201TG2008PLC067141 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

  (All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

 
 

 

 
53. Previous year/period figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to those  
of the current year. 
 
 

For K.S. Rao & Co.,                                                                For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                                                        
Chartered Accountants                                                                GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 003109S 
 
 
              
                                                                                                                                              
Hitesh Kumar P                                                                              P.S Nair                                     Pradeep Panicker  
Partner                                                                                              Director                 Director 
Membership No: 233734                                      DIN: 00063118               DIN: 02730418 
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                                                     Date: April 26, 2024                  Date: April 26, 2024 
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